PROGRESS SOFTWARE CORP/MA

Form 10-O October 07, 2015 **Table of Contents**

UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-O

(Mark One)

OUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the quarterly period ended August 31, 2015

TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

Commission File Number: 0-19417

PROGRESS SOFTWARE CORPORATION

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

DELAWARE (State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization) 04-2746201 (I.R.S. Employer

Identification No.)

14 Oak Park

Bedford, Massachusetts 01730

(Address of principal executive offices)(Zip code)

Telephone Number: (781) 280-4000

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes ý No " Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if any, every Interactive Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (§232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such files). Yes \(\documes\) No "

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting company. See the definitions "large accelerated filer", "accelerated filer" and "smaller reporting company" in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Accelerated filer Large accelerated filer ý Non-accelerated filer Smaller reporting company

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act). Yes "No ý

As of September 29, 2015, there were 50,215,798 shares of the registrant's common stock, \$.01 par value per share, outstanding.

Table of Contents

PROGRESS SOFTWARE CORPORATION FORM 10-Q FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED AUGUST 31, 2015 INDEX

PART I FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Item 1.	Financial Statements (Unaudited)	<u>3</u>
		<u>3</u>
	Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations for the three and nine months ended August	
	31, 2015 and 2014	<u>4</u>
	Condensed Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive (Loss) Income for the three and nine	<u>5</u>
	months ended August 31, 2015 and 2014	<u>J</u>
	Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the nine months ended August 31, 2015	6
	and 2014	<u>U</u>
	Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements	<u>8</u>
Item 2.	Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations	<u>25</u>
Item 3.		<u>39</u>
Item 4.		<u>39</u>
PART II	OTHER INFORMATION	
Item 1.	Legal Proceedings	<u>41</u>
Item 1A.		<u>41</u>
Item 2.		<u>41</u>
Item 6.		<u>42</u>
	<u>Signatures</u>	<u>43</u>
2.		

Table of Contents

PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Item 1. Financial Statements (Unaudited)

Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets

(In thousands, except share data)	August 31, 2015	November 30, 2014
Assets		
Current assets:		
Cash and cash equivalents	\$189,113	\$263,082
Short-term investments	29,191	20,186
Total cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments	218,304	283,268
Accounts receivable (less allowances of \$2,019 and \$2,592, respectively)	60,335	68,311
Other current assets	19,937	24,028
Deferred tax assets	31,791	10,066
Total current assets	330,367	385,673
Property and equipment, net	56,825	59,351
Intangible assets, net	121,323	20,578
Goodwill	370,465	232,836
Deferred tax assets	3,002	2,259
Other assets	4,652	2,364
Total assets	\$886,634	\$703,061
Liabilities and shareholders' equity		
Current liabilities:		
Current portion of long-term debt	\$7,500	\$ —
Accounts payable	9,363	11,749
Accrued compensation and related taxes	26,250	20,815
Income taxes payable	8,270	2,246
Other accrued liabilities	21,723	25,936
Short-term deferred revenue	124,285	92,557
Total current liabilities	197,391	153,303
Long-term debt	136,875	_
Long-term deferred revenue	6,711	3,683
Deferred tax liabilities	9,643	305
Other noncurrent liabilities	6,272	2,525
Commitments and contingencies		
Shareholders' equity:		
Preferred stock, \$0.01 par value; authorized, 1,000,000 shares; issued, none		_
Common stock, \$0.01 par value, and additional paid-in capital; authorized,		
200,000,000 shares; issued and outstanding, 50,204,804 shares in 2015 and	223,299	209,778
50,676,769 shares in 2014		
Retained earnings	328,632	347,193
Accumulated other comprehensive loss	(22,189) (13,726)
Total shareholders' equity	529,742	543,245
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity	\$886,634	\$703,061
See notes to unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements.		

Table of Contents

Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations

	Three Mont		Nine Month	
(In thousands, except per share data)	August 31, 2015	August 31, 2014	August 31, 2015	August 31, 2014
Revenue:				
Software licenses	\$31,840	\$26,393	\$85,794	\$76,645
Maintenance and services	62,797	52,881	179,042	157,994
Total revenue	94,637	79,274	264,836	234,639
Costs of revenue:				
Cost of software licenses	1,441	1,805	4,526	4,951
Cost of maintenance and services	9,612	5,222	31,174	16,276
Amortization of acquired intangibles	4,079	834	12,805	1,893
Total costs of revenue	15,132	7,861	48,505	23,120
Gross profit	79,505	71,413	216,331	211,519
Operating expenses:				
Sales and marketing	30,004	22,477	92,607	71,425
Product development	20,422	14,975	65,533	45,568
General and administrative	14,076	12,162	42,065	35,236
Amortization of acquired intangibles	3,186	116	9,559	428
Restructuring expenses	2,561	1,680	8,715	2,001
Acquisition-related expenses	662	572	3,180	3,148
Total operating expenses	70,911	51,982	221,659	157,806
Income (loss) from operations	8,594	19,431	(5,328)	53,713
Other (expense) income:				
Interest expense	(987)	(122)	(2,808)	(430)
Interest income and other, net	450	(1,800)	1,153	(383)
Foreign currency (loss) gain, net	(628)	(535)	397	(1,768)
Total other expense, net	(1,165)	(2,457)	(1,258)	(2,581)
Income (loss) before income taxes	7,429	16,974	(6,586)	51,132
Provision (benefit) for income taxes	11,555	5,879	(7,256)	16,138
Net (loss) income	\$(4,126)	\$11,095	\$670	\$34,994
Earnings per share:				
Basic	\$(0.08)	\$0.22	\$0.01	\$0.69
Diluted	\$(0.08)	\$0.22	\$0.01	\$0.68
Weighted average shares outstanding:				
Basic	50,120	50,383	50,377	50,975
Diluted	50,120	50,931	51,117	51,590
See notes to unaudited condensed consolidated financial statement	nts.			

Table of Contents

Condensed Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive (Loss) Income

	Three Mo		ns Ended August 31		Nine Mon August 31		s Ended August 31,
(In thousands)	2015		2014		2015		2014
Net (loss) income	\$(4,126)	\$11,095		\$670		\$34,994
Other comprehensive (loss) income, net of tax:							
Foreign currency translation adjustments	(257)	(1,044)	(8,411)	93
Unrealized (losses) gains on investments, net of tax of \$0 for the							
third quarter and first nine months of 2015, and \$408 and \$567 fo	r(17)	709		(52)	816
the third quarter and first nine months of 2014, respectively							
Reclassification adjustment for losses included in net income, net of tax of \$937 for the third quarter and first nine months of 2014	_		1,617		_		1,617
Total other comprehensive (loss) income, net of tax	(274)	1,282		(8,463)	2,526
Comprehensive (loss) income	\$(4,400)	\$12,377		\$(7,793)	\$37,520

See notes to unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements.

Table of Contents

Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Nine Months Ended		s Ended	
(In thousands)	August 31,	August 31,	
(III tilousalius)	2015	2014	
Cash flows from operating activities:			
Net income	\$670	\$34,994	
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:			
Depreciation and amortization of property and equipment	7,209	7,384	
Amortization of intangibles and other	24,420	3,648	
Stock-based compensation	18,812	18,194	
Asset impairment	3,999		
Loss on sales of auction rate securities		2,554	
Deferred income taxes	(23,067) (390)
Excess tax benefit from stock plans	(1,107) (434)
Allowances for accounts receivable	356	455	
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:			
Accounts receivable	11,160	8,325	
Other assets	(508) 10,535	
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities	(3,378) (17,049)
Income taxes payable	7,367	2,123	
Deferred revenue	31,255	(1,870)
Net cash flows from operating activities	77,188	68,469	
Cash flows used in investing activities:	•	·	
Purchases of investments	(20,068) (1,900)
Sales and maturities of investments	10,436	14,935	
Redemptions and sales of auction rate securities		26,196	
Purchases of property and equipment	(6,079) (7,183)
Capitalized software development costs	(1,661) (3,008)
Payments for acquisitions, net of cash acquired	(246,275) (12,493)
Proceeds from divestitures, net	4,500	3,300	
Decrease in other noncurrent assets		144	
Net cash flows (used in) from investing activities	(259,147) 19,991	
Cash flows from (used in) financing activities:			
Proceeds from stock-based compensation plans	10,459	10,714	
Purchases of stock related to withholding taxes from the issuance of restricted stock		·	,
units	(2,850) (3,141)
Repurchases of common stock	(32,868) (52,604)
Excess tax benefit from stock plans	1,107	434	
Payment of contingent consideration	(209) (210)
Proceeds from the issuance of debt	150,000	_	
Payment of long-term debt	(5,625) —	
Payment of issuance costs for long-term debt	(1,787) —	
Net cash flows from (used in) financing activities	118,227	(44,807)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash	(10,237) (91)
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents	(73,969) 43,562	,
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period	263,082	198,818	
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period	\$189,113	\$242,380	
. T	, ,	. =,===	

Table of Contents

Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, continued

	Nine Months Ended	
	August 31,	August 31,
	2015	2014
Supplemental disclosure:		
Cash paid for income taxes, net of refunds of \$1,887 in 2015 and \$296 in 2014	\$7,329	\$6,300
Cash paid for interest	\$2,150	\$ —
Non-cash financing activities:		
Total fair value of restricted stock awards, restricted stock units and deferred stock unit	S \$0.063	\$10,525
on date vested	\$ 9,903	\$10,323
See notes to unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements.		

Table of Contents

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1: Basis of Presentation

Company Overview - We are a global software company that simplifies the development, deployment and management of business applications on-premise or in the cloud, on any platform or device, to any data source, with enhanced performance, minimal IT complexity and low total cost of ownership. Our comprehensive portfolio of products provides leading solutions for rapid development, broad data integration and efficient data analysis. Our solutions are used across a variety of industries.

Our products are generally sold as perpetual licenses, but certain products and business activities also use term licensing models and our cloud-based offerings use a subscription based model. More than half of our worldwide license revenue is realized through relationships with indirect channel partners, principally application partners and original equipment manufacturers (OEMs). Application partners are independent software vendors (ISVs) that develop and market applications using our technology and resell our products in conjunction with sales of their own products that incorporate our technology. OEMs are companies that embed our products into their own software products or devices.

We operate in North America and Latin America (the Americas); Europe, the Middle East and Africa (EMEA); and the Asia Pacific region, through local subsidiaries as well as independent distributors.

Basis of Presentation and Significant Accounting Policies - We prepared the accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) regarding interim financial reporting. Accordingly, they do not include all of the information and footnotes required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) for complete financial statements and these unaudited financial statements should be read in conjunction with the audited financial statements included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended November 30, 2014.

We made no significant changes in the application of our significant accounting policies that were disclosed in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended November 30, 2014. We have prepared the accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements on the same basis as the audited financial statements included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K, and these financial statements include all adjustments, consisting only of normal recurring adjustments, necessary for a fair presentation of the results of the interim periods presented. The operating results for the interim periods presented are not necessarily indicative of the results expected for the full fiscal year.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements - In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting Standards Update No. 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606) (ASU 2014-09). ASU 2014-09 outlines a single comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from contracts with customers and supersedes most current revenue recognition guidance, including industry-specific guidance. This new guidance is effective for annual reporting periods (including interim reporting periods within those periods) beginning after December 15, 2016. Early adoption is not permitted. Entities have the option of using either a full retrospective or a modified approach to adopt the guidance. In July 2015, the FASB voted to defer the effective date of this ASU by one year for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2017, with early adoption permitted as of the original effective date. As a result, the new effective date for the Company will be December 1, 2018. This update could impact the timing and amounts of revenue recognized. Management is currently assessing the impact the adoption of this ASU will have on the Company's consolidated financial statements.

In April 2015, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update No. 2015-03, Interest - Imputation of Interest (Subtopic 835-30) Simplifying the Presentation of Debt Issuance Costs (ASU 2015-03). ASU 2015-03 requires debt issuance

costs to be presented in the balance sheet as a direct deduction from the carrying value of the associated debt liability, consistent with the presentation of a debt discount. The guidance in ASU 2015-03 is required for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2015, including interim periods within the reporting period. Early adoption is permitted for financial statements that have not been previously issued. The Company is considering early adoption of the new standard and expects the impact on the Company's consolidated balance sheets to be a reclassification of approximately \$1.4 million from other assets to long-term debt as of December 1, 2015.

Table of Contents

Note 2: Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments

A summary of our cash, cash equivalents and available-for-sale investments at August 31, 2015 is as follows (in thousands):

	Amortized			Fair Value
	Cost Basis	Gains	Losses	Tun vuide
Cash	\$163,248	\$ —	\$—	\$163,248
Money market funds	25,865			25,865
State and municipal bond obligations	29,157	52	(18) 29,191
Total	\$218,270	\$52	\$(18) \$218,304

A summary of our cash, cash equivalents and available-for-sale investments at November 30, 2014 is as follows (in thousands):

	Amortized Cost Basis	Unrealized Gains	Unrealized Losses	Fair Value
Cash	\$195,189	\$ —	\$ —	\$195,189
Money market funds	67,893	_	_	67,893
State and municipal bond obligations	20,100	86		20,186
Total	\$283,182	\$86	\$ —	\$283,268

Such amounts are classified on our condensed consolidated balance sheets as follows (in thousands):

	August 31, 20	15	November 30, 2014		
	Cash and	Short-Term	Cash and	Short-Term	
	Equivalents	Investments	Equivalents	Investments	
Cash	\$163,248	\$ —	\$195,189	\$—	
Money market funds	25,865	_	67,893	_	
State and municipal bond obligations	_	29,191		20,186	
Total	\$189,113	\$29,191	\$263,082	\$20,186	

The fair value of debt securities by contractual maturity is as follows (in thousands):

	August 31,	November 30,
	2015	2014
Due in one year or less	\$13,093	\$11,140
Due after one year (1)	16,098	9,046
Total	\$29,191	\$20,186

⁽¹⁾ Includes state and municipal bond obligations, which are securities representing investments available for current operations and are classified as current in the consolidated balance sheets.

We did not hold any investments with continuous unrealized losses as of August 31, 2015 or November 30, 2014.

Table of Contents

Note 3: Derivative Instruments

We generally use forward contracts that are not designated as hedging instruments to hedge economically the impact of the variability in exchange rates on accounts receivable denominated in certain foreign currencies. We generally do not hedge the net assets of our international subsidiaries. All forward contracts are recorded at fair value in other current assets, other accrued liabilities, or other noncurrent liabilities on the condensed consolidated balance sheets at the end of each reporting period and expire from 90 days to two years. In the three and nine months ended August 31, 2015, realized and unrealized gains of \$0.6 million and realized and unrealized losses of \$1.9 million, respectively, from our forward contracts were recognized in foreign currency gain (loss), net in the condensed consolidated statements of operations. In the three and nine months ended August 31, 2014, realized and unrealized losses of \$0.4 million and \$1.5 million, respectively, from our forward contracts were recognized in foreign currency gain (loss), net in the condensed consolidated statements of operations. The losses were substantially offset by realized and unrealized gains on the offsetting positions.

The table below details outstanding foreign currency forward contracts where the notional amount is determined using contract exchange rates (in thousands):

	August 31, 2015		November 30, 2014			
	Notional Value	Fair Value		Notional Value	Fair Value	
Forward contracts to sell U.S. dollars	\$88,030	\$(3,389)	\$21,738	\$(13)
Forward contracts to purchase U.S. dollars	7,966	(63)	15,534	(89)
Total	\$95,996	\$(3,452)	\$37,272	\$(102)

Note 4: Fair Value Measurements

Recurring Fair Value Measurements

The following table details the fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy of our financial assets and liabilities at August 31, 2015 (in thousands):

		Fair Value Mea	surements Using	5
	Total Fair Value	Level 1	Level 2	Level 3
Assets				
Money market funds	\$25,865	\$25,865	\$ —	\$ —
State and municipal bond obligations	29,191		29,191	
Liabilities				
Foreign exchange derivatives	\$(3,452	\$	\$(3,452)	\$—

The following table details the fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy of our financial assets and liabilities at November 30, 2014 (in thousands):

		Fair Value N	Fair Value Measurements Using			
	Total Fair Value	Level 1	Level 2	Level 3		
Assets						
Money market funds	\$67,893	\$67,893	\$ —	\$		
State and municipal bond obligations	20,186	_	20,186			
Foreign exchange derivatives	(102) —	(102) —		

Liabilities Contingent consideration \$(1,717) \$— \$— \$(1,717)

When developing fair value estimates, we maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. When available, we use quoted market prices to measure fair value. The valuation technique used to measure fair value for our

Table of Contents

Level 1 and Level 2 assets is a market approach, using prices and other relevant information generated by market transactions involving identical or comparable assets. If market prices are not available, the fair value measurement is based on models that use primarily market based parameters including yield curves, volatilities, credit ratings and currency rates. In certain cases where market rate assumptions are not available, we are required to make judgments about assumptions market participants would use to estimate the fair value of a financial instrument.

We have also classified contingent consideration related to the Rollbase, Inc. (Rollbase) and Modulus LLC (Modulus) acquisitions, which occurred in the second quarter of fiscal years 2013 and 2014, respectively, within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy because the fair values are derived using significant unobservable inputs, which include discount rates and probability-weighted cash flows. We determined the fair value of our contingent consideration obligations based on a probability-weighted income approach derived from probability assessments of the attainment of certain milestones. We establish discount rates to be utilized in our valuation models based on the cost to borrow that would be required by a market participant for similar instruments. In determining the probability of attaining certain milestones, we utilize data regarding similar milestone events from our own experience. On a quarterly basis, we reassess the probability factors associated with the milestones for our contingent consideration obligations. Significant judgment is employed in determining the appropriateness of these key assumptions as of the acquisition date and for each subsequent period.

The key assumption as of August 31, 2015 related to the contingent consideration for the acquisition of Modulus used in the model is a probability of 0% that the year two milestone associated with the contingent consideration will be achieved. As such, we reduced the balance of the liability to \$0 during the third quarter of fiscal year 2015. The year one milestone was not achieved as of May 31, 2015, which was the end of the first milestone period, and as a result, the liability was also reduced to \$0 as of May 31, 2015.

In regard to the contingent consideration related to the acquisition of Rollbase, the contingency was relieved as of May 31, 2015 as the milestones associated with the contingent consideration were achieved as of this date. As such, the amount of the payment related to the contingent consideration was known as of May 31, 2015 and was based on actual results. We transferred the contingent earn out liability to a Level 2 fair value measurement as the value as of May 31, 2015 was based on observable inputs. The payment was made in June 2015 in the amount of \$0.2 million; as such, there is no longer a liability related to the Rollbase contingent consideration as of August 31, 2015.

The following table reflects the activity for our liabilities measured at fair value using Level 3 inputs for each period presented (in thousands):

	Three Months Ended		Nine Month	is Ended
	August 31,	August 31,	August 31,	August 31,
	2015	2014	2015	2014
Balance, beginning of period	\$295	\$1,649	\$1,717	\$388
Incurrence of contingent purchase price liability	_			1,450
Payments of contingent consideration	_		(209)	(210)
Changes in fair value of contingent consideration obligation	(295)	2	(1,508)	23
Balance, end of period	\$	\$1,651	\$ —	\$1,651

We recorded credits of approximately \$0.3 million and \$1.5 million during the three and nine months ended August 31, 2015, respectively, due to the change in fair value of the contingent consideration obligation, which is included in acquisition-related expenses in our condensed consolidated statement of operations.

Nonrecurring Fair Value Measurements

During the second quarter of fiscal year 2015, certain assets have been measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3). Based on the fair value measurement, we recorded a \$3.9 million asset impairment charge as of May 31, 2015 related to our cloud-based mobile application development technology as a result of our decision to replace our existing cloud-based mobile application development technology with technology acquired in connection with the acquisition of Telerik AD (Note 11).

Table of Contents

The following table presents nonrecurring fair value measurements as of May 31, 2015 (in thousands):

Total Fair Value Total Losses
Long-lived assets \$60 \$3,947

The fair value measurement was determined using an income-based valuation methodology, which incorporates unobservable inputs, including discounted expected cash flows over the remaining estimated useful life of the technology, thereby classifying the fair value as a Level 3 measurement within the fair value hierarchy. The expected cash flows include subscription fees to be collected from existing customers using the platform, offset by hosting fees and compensation related costs to be incurred over the remaining estimated useful lives.

We did not have any nonrecurring fair value measurements as of August 31, 2015 and November 30, 2014.

Note 5: Intangible Assets and Goodwill

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are comprised of the following significant classes (in thousands):

	August 31, 20	15		November 30,	2014	
	Gross Carrying Amount	Accumulated Amortization		Gross Carrying Amount	Accumulated Amortization	Net Book Value
Purchased technology	\$118,133	\$(51,924	\$66,209	\$53,789	\$(39,575)	\$14,214
Customer-related and other	67,617	(22,917) 44,700	20,554	(15,195)	5,359
Trademarks and trade names	15,330	(4,916) 10,414	4,130	(3,125)	1,005
Total	\$201,080	\$(79,757	\$121,323	\$78,473	\$(57,895)	\$20,578

As a result of the acquisition of Telerik in December 2014 (Note 6), we recorded \$64.8 million of purchased technology, \$47.1 million of customer-related and other, and \$11.2 million of trademarks and trade names as intangible assets during the nine months ended August 31, 2015. These intangibles have a weighted average useful life of 5 years.

In the three and nine months ended August 31, 2015, amortization expense related to intangible assets was \$7.3 million and \$22.4 million, respectively. In the three and nine months ended August 31, 2014, amortization expense related to intangible assets was \$1.0 million and \$2.3 million, respectively.

Future amortization expense for intangible assets as of August 31, 2015, is as follows (in thousands):

Remainder of 2015	\$7,214
2016	28,499
2017	28,499
2018	27,686
2019	26,561
Thereafter	2,864
Total	\$121,323

Table of Contents

Goodwill

Changes in the carrying amount of goodwill in the nine months ended August 31, 2015, are as follows (in thousands):

Balance, November 30, 2014	\$232,836	
Additions	137,921	
Translation adjustments	(292)	
Balance, August 31, 2015	\$370,465	

The addition to goodwill during the first nine months of fiscal year 2015 is related to the acquisition of Telerik AD in December 2014 (Note 6).

As of August 31, 2015, the amount of goodwill allocated to each of our three reporting units is as follows (in thousands):

OpenEdge	\$212,011
Data Connectivity and Integration	19,040
Application Development and Deployment	139,414
Balance, August 31, 2015	\$370,465

During the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2014, we completed our annual testing for impairment of goodwill and, based on those tests, concluded that no impairment of goodwill existed as of October 31, 2014. As of August 31, 2015, no triggering events have occurred that would indicate a potential impairment of goodwill exists.

Note 6: Business Combinations

Telerik Acquisition

On December 2, 2014, we, through a wholly owned subsidiary, completed the acquisition of all of the outstanding securities of Telerik AD (Telerik), a leading provider of application development tools based in Sofia, Bulgaria, for total consideration of \$262.5 million. Approximately \$10.5 million of the total consideration was paid to Telerik's founders and certain other key employees in restricted stock units, subject to a vesting schedule and continued employment. Under the Securities Purchase Agreement, 10% of the total consideration was deposited into an escrow account to secure certain indemnification and other obligations of the sellers to Progress.

Through this acquisition, we now provide comprehensive cloud and on-premise platform offerings that enable developers to rapidly create applications, driven by data for any web, desktop or mobile platform. We funded the acquisition through a combination of existing cash resources and a \$150 million term loan (Note 7).

The total consideration, less the fair value of the granted restricted stock units discussed above, which are considered compensation arrangements, has been allocated to Telerik's tangible assets, identifiable intangible assets and assumed liabilities based on their estimated fair values. The preliminary fair value estimates of the net assets acquired are based upon preliminary calculations and valuations, and those estimates and assumptions are subject to change as we obtain additional information for those estimates during the measurement period (up to one year from the acquisition date). The excess of the total consideration, less the fair value of the restricted stock units, over the tangible assets, identifiable intangible assets and assumed liabilities was recorded as goodwill.

Table of Contents

The preliminary allocation of the purchase price is as follows (in thousands):

	Total	Weighted Average Life
Net working capital	\$6,612	
Property, plant and equipment	3,108	
Identifiable intangible assets	123,100	5 years
Deferred taxes	(10,401)	
Deferred revenue	(7,915)	
Other non-current liabilities	(472)	
Goodwill	137,921	
Net assets acquired	\$251,953	

The preliminary fair value of the intangible assets has been estimated using the income approach in which the after-tax cash flows are discounted to present value. The cash flows are based on estimates prepared by management, and the discount rates applied were benchmarked with reference to the implied rate of return from the transaction model as well as the weighted average cost of capital. Based on the preliminary valuation, the acquired intangible assets are comprised of purchased technology of approximately \$64.8 million, customer-related and other of approximately \$47.1 million, and trademarks and trade names of approximately \$11.2 million.

Deferred taxes include deferred tax liabilities resulting from the tax effects of fair value adjustments related to identifiable intangible assets and deferred revenue, partially offset by the fair value of deferred tax assets acquired from Telerik. Tangible assets acquired and assumed liabilities were recorded at fair value. The valuation of the assumed deferred revenue was based on our contractual commitment to provide post-contract customer support to Telerik customers and future contractual performance obligations under existing hosting arrangements. The fair value of this assumed liability was based on the estimated cost plus a reasonable margin to fulfill these service obligations. A significant portion of the deferred revenue is expected to be recognized in the 12 months following the acquisition.

We recorded the excess of the purchase price over the identified tangible and intangible assets as goodwill. We believe that the investment value of the future enhancement of our product and solution offerings created as a result of this acquisition has principally contributed to a purchase price that resulted in the recognition of \$137.9 million of goodwill, which is not deductible for tax purposes.

As discussed above, approximately \$10.5 million of the total consideration was paid to Telerik's founders and certain other key employees in restricted stock units, subject to a vesting schedule and continued employment. We concluded that the restricted stock units are compensation arrangements and we have been recognizing stock-based compensation expense in accordance with the vesting schedule over the service period of the awards, which is 2 years. We recorded \$0.7 million and \$2.1 million of stock-based compensation expense related to these restricted stock units for the three and nine months ended August 31, 2015, respectively. This amount is recorded as operating expenses in our condensed consolidated statement of operations.

Acquisition-related transaction costs (e.g., legal, due diligence, valuation, and other professional fees) and certain acquisition restructuring and related charges are not included as a component of consideration transferred, but are required to be expensed as incurred. During the three and nine months ended August 31, 2015, we incurred approximately \$0.8 million and \$2.7 million of acquisition-related costs, respectively, which are included in acquisition-related expenses in our condensed consolidated statement of operations.

In connection with the acquisition of Telerik, we agreed to provide retention bonuses to certain Telerik employees as an incentive for those employees to remain with Telerik for at least one year following the acquisition. We concluded

that the retention bonuses for these individuals, which total approximately \$2.5 million, are compensation arrangements and we have been accruing the maximum payouts ratably over the one-year service period. We have incurred \$0.6 million and \$1.8 million of expense related to the retention bonuses for the three and nine months ended August 31, 2015, respectively, which are included in the acquisition-related expenses in our condensed consolidated statement of operations discussed above.

The operations of Telerik are included in our operating results as part of the Application Development and Deployment business unit from the date of acquisition. The amount of revenue of Telerik included in our unaudited condensed consolidated statement of operations during the three and nine months ended August 31, 2015 was approximately \$12.5 million and \$26.2

Table of Contents

million, respectively. The amount of pretax losses of Telerik included in our unaudited condensed consolidated statement of operations during the three and nine months ended August 31, 2015 were approximately \$4.0 million and \$22.7 million, respectively. The revenue of Telerik is primarily being recognized ratably over the maintenance period, which is generally one year, as vendor specific objective evidence (or VSOE) of fair value cannot be established for such maintenance. The pretax loss does not include the amortization expense of approximately \$18.5 million related to the acquired intangible assets discussed above as the intangible assets and related amortization were recorded by the acquiring entity.

Pro Forma Information

The following pro forma financial information presents the combined results of operations of Progress and Telerik as if the acquisition had occurred on December 1, 2013 after giving effect to certain pro forma adjustments. The pro forma adjustments reflected herein include only those adjustments that are directly attributable to the Telerik acquisition and factually supportable. These pro forma adjustments include (i) a decrease in revenue from Telerik due to the beginning balance of deferred revenue being adjusted to reflect the fair value of the acquired balance, (ii) a net increase in amortization expense to eliminate historical amortization of Telerik intangible assets and to record amortization expense for the \$123.1 million of acquired identifiable intangible assets, (iii) stock-based compensation expense relating to the consideration paid to Telerik's founders and certain other key employees in restricted stock units, as discussed above, (iv) a net increase in interest expense to eliminate historical interest expense of Telerik as a result of the repayment of all Telerik outstanding debt in connection with the acquisition and to record interest expense for the period presented as a result of the new credit facility entered into by Progress in connection with the acquisition, (v) acquisition-related costs, including transaction costs incurred by Progress related to the accrual of retention bonuses discussed above, and (vi) the income tax effect of the adjustments made at either the statutory tax rate of Bulgaria (10%) or the statutory tax rate of the U.S. (approximately 37%) depending on which jurisdiction the adjustment impacts.

The pro forma financial information does not reflect any adjustments for anticipated synergies resulting from the acquisition and is not necessarily indicative of the operating results that would have actually occurred had the transaction been consummated on December 1, 2013.

	Pro Forma	Pro Forma	
(In thousands, except per share data)	Three Months Ended		1
	August 31, 2014	August 31, 2014	
Revenue	\$90,409	\$256,338	
Net loss	\$(1,251)	\$(17,283)
Net loss per basic and diluted share	\$(0.02)	\$(0.34)

D.

D.

BravePoint Acquisition

On October 1, 2014, we acquired 100% of the capital stock of BravePoint, Inc. (BravePoint) from Chesapeake Utilities Corporation in exchange for \$12.0 million in cash. BravePoint is based in Norcross, Georgia and is a provider of OpenEdge consulting, training and application development services designed to increase customers' profitability and competitiveness through the use of technology. This acquisition significantly extends our services capabilities and enhances our ability to quickly enable our partners and customers to take greater advantage of new technologies. The acquisition was accounted for as a business combination, and accordingly, the results of operations of BravePoint are included in our operating results as part of the OpenEdge business unit from the date of acquisition. We paid the purchase price in cash from available funds.

Table of Contents

The allocation of the purchase price is as follows (in thousands):

	Total	Weighted Average Life
Net working capital	\$2,902	_
Property and equipment	735	
Other assets	16	
Deferred revenue	(680)	
Customer-related and other	4,110	7 Years
Trade name	850	7 Years
Purchased technology	1,810	3 Years
Goodwill	2,257	
Net assets acquired	\$12,000	

We recorded the excess of the purchase price over the identified tangible and intangible assets as goodwill. We believe that the investment value of the future enhancement of our product and solution offerings created as a result of this acquisition has principally contributed to a purchase price that resulted in the recognition of \$2.3 million of goodwill. The goodwill is deductible for tax purposes. The allocation of the purchase price was completed in the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2014 upon the finalization of our valuation of identifiable intangible assets.

We incurred approximately \$0.2 million and \$1.1 million of acquisition-related costs during the three and nine months ended August 31, 2015, respectively, which are included in acquisition-related expenses in our condensed consolidated statement of operations. We have not disclosed the amount of revenues and earnings of BravePoint since acquisition, nor pro forma financial information, as those amounts are not significant to our consolidated financial statements.

Modulus Acquisition

On May 13, 2014, we acquired 100% of the membership interests of Modulus LLC (Modulus), a privately held platform-as-a-service (PaaS) provider based in Cincinnati, Ohio, for \$15.0 million. The purchase consideration consisted of \$12.5 million in cash paid and \$2.5 million of contingent consideration, payable over a two year period, if earned. The fair value of the contingent consideration was estimated to be \$1.5 million at the date of acquisition; as such, the fair value of the purchase consideration allocated to the assets acquired totaled \$14.0 million. Note that the year one milestone was not achieved as of May 31, 2015, which was the end of the first milestone period, and we do not expect the year two milestone to be achieved by the end of the second milestone period on May 31, 2016 (Note 4).

Modulus provides a PaaS for easily hosting, deploying, scaling and monitoring data-intensive, real-time applications using powerful, rapidly growing Node.js and MongoDB technologies. The purpose of the acquisition is to capitalize on the expected market growth of the core technologies that Modulus supports and drive new revenue through our aPaaS platform. The acquisition was accounted for as a business combination, and accordingly, the results of operations of Modulus are included in our operating results from the date of acquisition. We paid the purchase price in cash from available funds.

The allocation of the purchase price is as follows (in thousands):

	Total	Weighted Average Life
Net working capital	\$7	C

Purchased technology	7,320	7 Years
Trade name	190	7 Years
Goodwill	6,433	
Net assets acquired	\$13,950	

We recorded the excess of the purchase price over the identified tangible and intangible assets as goodwill. We believe that the investment value of the future enhancement of our product and solution offerings created as a result of this acquisition has

Table of Contents

principally contributed to a purchase price that resulted in the recognition of \$6.4 million of goodwill. The goodwill is deductible for tax purposes. The allocation of the purchase price was completed in the third quarter of fiscal year 2014 upon the finalization of our valuation of identifiable intangible assets.

We recorded credits of approximately \$0.3 million and \$1.5 million during the three and nine months ended August 31, 2015, respectively, due to the change in fair value of the contingent consideration obligation, which is included in acquisition-related expenses in our condensed consolidated statement of operations. We have not disclosed the amount of revenues and earnings of Modulus since acquisition, nor pro forma financial information, as those amounts are not significant to our condensed consolidated financial statements.

Note 7: Term Loan and Line of Credit

On December 2, 2014, we entered into a credit agreement (the Credit Agreement) with each of the lenders party thereto (the Lenders), JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as Administrative Agent, Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. and Citizens Bank, N.A., as Syndication Agents, Bank of America, N.A., Citibank, N.A. and Silicon Valley Bank, as Documentation Agents, and J.P. Morgan Securities LLC, as Sole Bookrunner and Sole Lead Arranger, providing for a \$150 million secured term loan and a \$150 million secured revolving credit facility, which may be made available in U.S. Dollars and certain other currencies. The revolving credit facility may be increased by up to an additional \$75 million if the existing or additional lenders are willing to make such increased commitments.

This Credit Agreement replaces our previous unsecured revolving credit facility dated August 15, 2011. The previous credit facility was to mature on August 15, 2016. Loans under the previous credit agreement could be paid before maturity in whole or in part at our option without penalty or premium. There were no revolving loans and \$0.7 million of letters of credit outstanding at the time of the termination of the previous credit agreement, which letters of credit were incorporated into the new credit facility. In addition, there was \$0.3 million of unamortized debt issuance costs related to the previous credit agreement remaining at the time of the termination that was written off to interest income and other, net in the condensed consolidated statement of operations.

The term loan included in the Credit Agreement was used to partially fund our acquisition of Telerik, as described in Note 6. The revolving credit facility has sublimits for swing line loans up to \$25.0 million and for the issuance of standby letters of credit in a face amount up to \$25.0 million. We expect to use the revolving credit facility for general corporate purposes, including acquisitions of other businesses, and may also use it for working capital.

Interest rates for the term loan and revolving credit facility are determined based on an index selected at our option and would range from 1.50% to 2.25% above the Eurodollar rate for Eurodollar-based borrowings or would range from 0.50% to 1.25% above the defined base rate for base rate borrowings, in each case based upon our leverage ratio. Additionally, we may borrow certain foreign currencies at rates set in the same range above the respective London interbank offered interest rates (LIBOR) for those currencies, based on our leverage ratio. A quarterly commitment fee on the undrawn portion of the revolving credit facility is required, ranging from 0.25% to 0.40% per annum, based upon our leverage ratio. The average interest rate of the credit facility during the fiscal quarter ended August 31, 2015 was 1.96%.

The credit facility matures on December 2, 2019, when all amounts outstanding will be due and payable in full. The revolving credit facility does not require amortization of principal. The term loan requires repayment of principal at the end of each fiscal quarter, beginning with the fiscal quarter ended February 28, 2015. The first eight payments are in the principal amount of \$1.9 million each, the following eight payments are in the principal amount of \$3.8 million each, the following three payments are in the principal amount of \$5.6 million each, and the last payment is of the remaining principal amount. Any amounts outstanding under the term loan thereafter would be due on the maturity date. The term loan may be prepaid before maturity in whole or in part at our option without penalty or premium. As

of August 31, 2015, the carrying value of the term loan approximates the fair value, based on Level 2 inputs (observable market prices in less than active markets), as the interest rate is variable over the selected interest period and is similar to current rates at which we can borrow funds. Based on Level 2 inputs, the fair value of the term loan was \$144.4 million as of August 31, 2015, with \$7.5 million due in the next 12 months.

Costs incurred to obtain our long-term debt are recorded as debt issuance costs within other assets in our condensed consolidated balance sheet as of August 31, 2015 and are amortized over the term of the debt agreement using the effective interest rate method. During the first nine months of fiscal year 2015, we recorded \$1.8 million of debt issuance costs. Amortization expense related to the debt issuance costs is recorded within interest expense in our condensed consolidated statements of operations. For the three and nine months ended August 31, 2015, this amount was \$0.1 million and \$0.3 million, respectively. For the three and nine months ended August 31, 2014, amortization expense related to the debt issuance costs of our previous credit agreement was minimal and \$0.1 million, respectively.

Table of Contents

Revolving loans may be borrowed, repaid and reborrowed until December 2, 2019, at which time all amounts outstanding must be repaid. Accrued interest on the loans is payable quarterly in arrears with respect to base rate loans and at the end of each interest rate period (or at each three month interval in the case of loans with interest periods greater than three months) with respect to LIBOR rate loans. We may prepay the loans or terminate or reduce the commitments in whole or in part at any time, without premium or penalty, subject to certain conditions and reimbursement of certain costs in the case of LIBOR rate loans. As of August 31, 2015, there were no amounts outstanding under the revolving line and \$0.5 million of letters of credit.

We are the sole borrower under the credit facility. Our obligations under the Credit Agreement are guaranteed by each of our material domestic subsidiaries and are secured by substantially all of our assets and such material domestic subsidiaries, as well as 100% of the capital stock of our domestic subsidiaries and 65% of the capital stock of our first-tier foreign subsidiaries, in each case, subject to certain exceptions as described in the Credit Agreement. Future material domestic subsidiaries will be required to guaranty our obligations under the Credit Agreement, and to grant security interests in substantially all of their assets to secure such obligations. The Credit Agreement generally prohibits, with certain exceptions, any other liens on our assets, subject to certain exceptions as described in the Credit Agreement.

The credit facility contains customary affirmative and negative covenants, including covenants that limit or restrict our ability to, among other things, grant liens, make investments, make acquisitions, incur indebtedness, merge or consolidate, dispose of assets, pay dividends or make distributions, repurchase stock, change the nature of the business, enter into certain transactions with affiliates and enter into burdensome agreements, in each case subject to customary exceptions for a credit facility of this size and type. We are also required to maintain compliance with a consolidated fixed charge coverage ratio, a consolidated total leverage ratio and a consolidated senior secured leverage ratio.

Note 8: Common Stock Repurchases

We did not repurchase shares of our common stock during the three months ended August 31, 2015. Total repurchased and retired shares of our common stock during the nine months ended August 31, 2015 was 1.3 million shares for \$32.9 million. In the three and nine months ended August 31, 2014, we repurchased and retired 0.7 million shares for \$17.6 million and 2.3 million shares for \$52.6 million, respectively. The shares were repurchased in both periods as part of our Board of Directors authorized \$100.0 million share repurchase program, with \$14.5 million remaining under the current authorization.

In September 2015, our Board of Directors authorized a new \$100.0 million share repurchase program, which increased the total authorization to \$114.5 million. The timing and amount of any shares repurchased will be determined by management based on its evaluation of market conditions and other factors, and the Board of Directors may choose to suspend, expand or discontinue the repurchase program at any time.

Note 9: Stock-Based Compensation

Stock-based compensation expense reflects the fair value of stock-based awards measured at the grant date and recognized over the relevant service period. We estimate the fair value of each stock-based award on the measurement date using the current market price of the stock or the Black-Scholes option valuation model. In addition, during the first quarter of fiscal year 2014 and each of the first three quarters of fiscal year 2015, we granted performance-based restricted stock units that include a three-year market condition. In order to estimate the fair value of such awards, we used a Monte Carlo Simulation valuation model. The Black-Scholes and Monte Carlo Simulation valuation models incorporate assumptions as to stock price volatility, the expected life of options or awards, a risk-free interest rate and

dividend yield. We recognize stock-based compensation expense related to options and restricted stock units on a straight-line basis over the service period of the award, which is generally 4 or 5 years for options and 3 years for restricted stock units. We recognize stock-based compensation expense related to performance stock units and our employee stock purchase plan using an accelerated attribution method.

Table of Contents

The following table provides the classification of stock-based compensation as reflected in our condensed consolidated statements of income (in thousands):

	Three Months Ended		Nine Months Ended		
	August 31, August 31,		August 31,	August 31,	
	2015	2014	2015	2014	
Cost of maintenance and services	\$144	\$141	\$462	\$439	
Sales and marketing	1,604	1,546	4,328	3,736	
Product development	912	1,407	3,476	4,186	
General and administrative	3,878	3,846	10,546	9,833	
Total stock-based compensation	\$6,538	\$6,940	\$18,812	\$18,194	

Note 10: Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss

The following table summarizes the changes in accumulated balances of other comprehensive loss during the nine months ended August 31, 2015 (in thousands):

	Foreign Currency	7	Unrealized Gain	S	Accumulated Oth	ner
	Translation		(Losses) on		Comprehensive	
	Adjustment		Investments		Loss	
Balance, December 1, 2014	\$(13,733)	\$7		\$(13,726)
Other comprehensive loss before reclassifications, net of tax	(8,411)	(52)	(8,463)
Balance, August 31, 2015	\$(22,144)	\$(45)	\$(22,189)

The tax effect on accumulated unrealized gains (losses) on investments was minimal as of August 31, 2015 and November 30, 2014.

Note 11: Restructuring Charges

The following table provides a summary of activity for all of the restructuring actions, which are detailed further below (in thousands):

	Excess	Employee	
	Facilities and	Severance and	Total
	Other Costs	Related Benefits	
Balance, December 1, 2014	\$416	\$1,227	\$1,643
Costs incurred	4,403	4,312	8,715
Cash disbursements	(447)	(3,651)	(4,098)
Asset impairment	(3,999)		(3,999)
Translation adjustments and other	83	(33)	50
Balance, August 31, 2015	\$456	\$1,855	\$2,311

2015 Restructuring

During the first quarter of fiscal year 2015, we restructured our operations in connection with the acquisition of Telerik. This restructuring resulted in a reduction in redundant positions primarily within the administrative functions. This restructuring also resulted in the closing of two facilities as well as asset impairment charges for assets no longer deployed as a result of the acquisition. During the second and third quarters of fiscal year 2015, we incurred additional

costs with respect to the 2015 restructuring, including reduction in redundant positions primarily within the product development function, as well as an impairment charge discussed further below.

Restructuring expenses are related to employee costs, including severance, health benefits and outplacement services (but excluding stock-based compensation), facilities costs, which include fees to terminate lease agreements and costs for unused space, net of sublease assumptions, and other costs, which include asset impairment charges.

Table of Contents

During the second quarter of fiscal year 2015, we decided to replace our existing cloud-based mobile application development technology with technology acquired in connection with the acquisition of Telerik. Accordingly, we evaluated the ongoing value of the assets associated with this prior mobile technology and, based on this evaluation, we determined that the long-lived assets with a carrying amount of \$4.0 million were no longer recoverable and were in fact impaired and wrote them down to their estimated fair value of \$0.1 million. Fair value was based on expected future cash flows using Level 3 inputs under ASC 820.

As part of the 2015 restructuring, for the three and nine months ended August 31, 2015, we incurred expenses of \$2.5 million and \$7.4 million, respectively. The expenses are recorded as restructuring expenses in the condensed consolidated statements of operations. As we continue to evaluate the combined entities, we may incur additional costs with respect to the 2015 restructuring, including excess facilities and other costs as well as asset impairment charges for assets no longer deployed as a result of the acquisition.

A summary of activity for the 2015 restructuring action is as follows (in thousands):

Excess	Employee		
Facilities and	Severance and	Total	
Other Costs	Related Benefits		
\$ —	\$ —	\$ —	
4,299	3,108	7,407	
(143)	(1,398)	(1,541)	
(3,999)		(3,999)	
102	2	104	
\$259	\$1,712	\$1,971	
	Facilities and Other Costs \$— 4,299 (143 (),3,999)) 102	Facilities and Other Costs Related Benefits \$	Facilities and Other Costs Related Benefits \$—

Cash disbursements for expenses incurred to date under the 2015 restructuring are expected to be made through the third quarter of fiscal year 2016. As a result, the total amount of the restructuring reserve of \$2.0 million is included in other accrued liabilities on the condensed consolidated balance sheet at August 31, 2015.

2014 Restructuring

During the third quarter of fiscal year 2014, our management approved, committed to and initiated plans to make strategic changes to our organization to provide greater focus and agility in the delivery of next generation application development, deployment and integration solutions. Effective September 1, 2014, we began to operate as three distinct business units: OpenEdge, Data Connectivity and Integration, and Application Development and Deployment, each with dedicated sales, product management and product marketing functions. In connection with the new organizational structure, we eliminated the position of global head of sales, as well as certain other positions within the sales and administrative organizations.

As part of the 2014 restructuring, for the three months ended August 31, 2015, we incurred minimal expenses, and for the nine months ended August 31, 2015, we incurred expenses of \$1.3 million, which are related to employee costs, including severance, health benefits, and outplacement services, but excluding stock-based compensation, and facilities costs, which include fees to terminate lease agreements and costs for unused space, net of sublease assumptions. For the nine months ended August 31, 2014, we incurred expenses of \$1.5 million. The expenses are recorded as restructuring expenses in the condensed consolidated statements of operations. We do not expect to incur additional material costs with respect to the 2014 restructuring.

Table of Contents

A summary of the first nine months of fiscal year 2015 activity for the 2014 restructuring action is as follows (in thousands):

	Excess	Employee	
	Facilities and	Severance and	Total
	Other Costs	Related Benefits	
Balance, December 1, 2014	\$ —	\$1,227	\$1,227
Costs incurred	131	1,204	1,335
Cash disbursements	(61)	(2,253)	(2,314)
Translation adjustments and other	_	(35)	(35)
Balance, August 31, 2015	\$70	\$143	\$213

Cash disbursements for expenses incurred to date under the 2014 restructuring are expected to be made through the first quarter of fiscal year 2016. As a result, the \$0.2 million is included in other accrued liabilities on the condensed consolidated balance sheet as of August 31, 2015.

2013 and 2012 Restructurings

During the third quarter of fiscal year 2013, our management approved, committed to and initiated plans to restructure and improve efficiencies in our operations as a result of the sale of the Apama product line and the divestitures completed during the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2012 and the first quarter of fiscal year 2013. We reduced our global workforce primarily within the administrative and sales organizations. This workforce reduction was conducted across all geographies and also resulted in the closing of certain facilities.

In the second quarter of fiscal year 2012, our management approved, committed to and initiated certain operational restructuring initiatives to reduce annual costs, including the simplification of our organizational structure and the consolidation of facilities. In addition, as part of the strategic plan announced during fiscal year 2012, we divested the product lines not considered core to our business. Our restructuring actions included both cost reduction efforts and qualifying costs associated with our divestitures.

Restructuring expenses for both restructurings related to employee costs, including severance, health benefits, outplacement services and transition divestiture arrangements (but excluding stock-based compensation), and facilities costs, which include fees to terminate lease agreements and costs for unused space, net of sublease assumptions. Other costs include costs to terminate automobile leases of employees included in the workforce reduction, asset impairment charges for assets no longer deployed as part of cost reduction strategies, costs for unused software licenses as part of the workforce reduction and other costs directly associated with the restructuring actions taken.

As part of the 2013 and 2012 restructuring actions, for the three and nine months ended August 31, 2015, we did not incur any expenses, and for the nine months ended August 31, 2014, we incurred expenses of \$0.5 million. The expenses are recorded as restructuring expenses in the condensed consolidated statements of operations. We do not expect to incur additional material costs with respect to the 2013 and 2012 restructuring actions.

A summary of the first nine months of fiscal year 2015 activity for the 2013 and 2012 restructuring actions is as follows (in thousands):

	Excess	Employee		
	Facilities and	Severance and	Total	
	Other Costs	Related Benefits		
Balance, December 1, 2014	\$416	\$ —	\$416	

Costs incurred	(27) —	(27)
Cash disbursements	(243) —	(243)
Translation adjustments and other	(19) —	(19)
Balance, August 31, 2015	\$127	\$ —	\$127

Cash disbursements for expenses incurred to date under the 2013 and 2012 restructuring actions are expected to be made through fiscal year 2017. The short-term portion of the restructuring reserve of \$0.1 million is included in other accrued

Table of Contents

liabilities and the remaining long-term portion, which is minimal, is included in other noncurrent liabilities on the condensed consolidated balance sheet as of August 31, 2015.

Note 12: Income Taxes

Our income tax provision for the third quarter of fiscal year 2015 and 2014 reflects our estimates of the effective tax rates expected to be applicable for the full fiscal years, adjusted for any discrete events which are recorded in the period they occur. The estimates are reevaluated each quarter based on our estimated tax expense for the full fiscal year.

The increase in our effective tax rate in the three and nine months ended August 31, 2015 compared to the same periods in the prior year is primarily due to the jurisdictional mix of profits as a result of the acquisition of Telerik, where substantial losses are being incurred in Bulgaria and tax effected at a 10% statutory rate and other jurisdictions' earnings, primarily in the United States, are being taxed at higher rates.

The research and development credit was retroactively reinstated in December 2014. As a result, in the first quarter of fiscal year 2015 we recorded a tax benefit of \$0.8 million related to qualifying research and development activities for the period from January 2014 to November 2014.

Our Federal income tax returns have been examined or are closed by statute for all years prior to fiscal year 2012, and we are no longer subject to audit for those periods. Our state income tax returns have been examined or are closed by statute for all years prior to fiscal year 2010, and we are no longer subject to audit for those periods.

Note 13: Earnings Per Share

We compute basic earnings per share using the weighted average number of common shares outstanding. We compute diluted earnings per share using the weighted average number of common shares outstanding plus the effect of outstanding dilutive stock options, restricted stock units and deferred stock units, using the treasury stock method. As we incurred a net loss during the three months ended August 31, 2015, basic and diluted weighted average shares outstanding are the same. The following table sets forth the calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share on an interim basis (in thousands, except per share data):

Three Mont	hs Ended	Nine Month	s Ended
August 31,	August 31,	August 31,	August 31,
2015	2014	2015	2014
\$(4,126)	\$11,095	\$670	\$34,994
50,120	50,383	50,377	50,975
	548	740	615
50,120	50,931	51,117	51,590
\$(0.08)	\$0.22	\$0.01	\$0.69
\$(0.08)	\$0.22	\$0.01	\$0.68
	August 31, 2015 \$(4,126) 50,120 - 50,120 \$(0.08)	2015 2014 \$(4,126) \$11,095 50,120 50,383 — 548 50,120 50,931 \$(0.08) \$0.22	August 31, August 31, August 31, 2015 2014 2015 \$(4,126) \$11,095 \$670 50,120 50,383 50,377 — 548 740 50,120 50,931 51,117 \$(0.08) \$0.22 \$0.01

We excluded stock awards representing approximately 1,173,000 shares and 296,000 shares of common stock from the calculation of diluted earnings per share in the three and nine months ended August 31, 2015, respectively, because these awards were anti-dilutive. In the three and nine months ended August 31, 2014, we excluded stock awards representing 351,000 shares and 383,000 shares of common stock, respectively, from the calculation of diluted earnings per share.

Note 14: Business Segments and International Operations

Operating segments are components of an enterprise that engage in business activities for which discrete financial information is available and regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision maker in deciding how to allocate resources and assess performance. Our chief operating decision maker is our Chief Executive Officer.

Effective September 1, 2014, we began operating as three distinct business units: OpenEdge, Data Connectivity and Integration, and Application Development and Deployment, each with dedicated sales, product management and product marketing functions. As a result of these changes, we began segment reporting for our three business units beginning in the fourth fiscal quarter of 2014. The segment information for the prior periods presented has been restated to reflect the change in our reportable segments.

Table of Contents

We do not manage our assets or capital expenditures by segment or assign other income (expense) and income taxes to segments. We manage and report such items on a consolidated company basis.

The following table provides revenue and contribution from our reportable segments and reconciles to the consolidated income (loss) before income taxes:

	Three Mont	hs Ended	Nine Month	s Ended
(In thousands)	August 31,	August 31,	August 31,	August 31,
(iii tilousalius)	2015	2014	2015	2014
Segment revenue:				
OpenEdge	\$73,398	\$71,847	\$214,775	\$211,773
Data Connectivity and Integration	8,281	7,175	22,669	22,221
Application Development and Deployment	12,958	252	27,392	645
Total revenue	94,637	79,274	264,836	234,639
Segment costs of revenue and operating expenses:				
OpenEdge	18,550	15,524	56,529	48,770
Data Connectivity and Integration	3,180	2,515	9,563	7,913
Application Development and Deployment	9,933	2,446	30,169	5,762
Total costs of revenue and operating expenses	31,663	20,485	96,261	62,445
Segment contribution:				
OpenEdge	54,848	56,323	158,246	163,003
Data Connectivity and Integration	5,101	4,660	13,106	14,308
Application Development and Deployment	3,025	(2,194)	(2,777)	(5,117)
Total contribution	62,974	58,789	168,575	172,194
Other unallocated expenses (1)	54,380	39,358	173,903	118,481
Income (loss) from operations	8,594	19,431	(5,328)	53,713
Other (expense) income, net	(1,165)	(2,457)	(1,258)	(2,581)
Income (loss) before income taxes	\$7,429	\$16,974	\$(6,586)	\$51,132

(1) The following expenses are not allocated to our segments as we manage and report our business in these functional areas on a consolidated basis only: product development, corporate marketing, administration, amortization of acquired intangibles, stock-based compensation, restructuring, and acquisition related expenses.

Our revenues are derived from licensing our products, and from related services, which consist of maintenance and consulting and education. Information relating to revenue from customers by revenue type is as follows (in thousands):

	Three Months Ended					
(In thousands)	August 31,	August 31,	August 31,	August 31,		
(iii tiiousaiius)	2015	2014	2015	2014		
Software licenses	\$31,840	\$26,393	\$85,794	\$76,645		
Maintenance	55,365	50,746	157,259	151,231		
Professional services	7,432	2,135	21,783	6,763		
Total	\$94,637	\$79,274	\$264,836	\$234,639		

Table of Contents

In the following table, revenue attributed to North America includes sales to customers in the U.S. and sales to certain multinational organizations. Revenue from Europe, the Middle East and Africa (EMEA), Latin America and the Asia Pacific region includes sales to customers in each region plus sales from the U.S. to distributors in these regions. Information relating to revenue from external customers from different geographical areas is as follows (in thousands):

	Three Mont	hs Ended	Nine Month	s Ended
(In thousands)	August 31,	August 31,	August 31,	August 31,
(III tilousalius)	2015	2014	2015	2014
North America	\$49,810	\$35,654	\$139,454	\$107,067
EMEA	30,656	32,995	89,667	96,008
Latin America	4,621	5,695	13,977	16,506
Asia Pacific	9,550	4,930	21,738	15,058
Total	\$94,637	\$79,274	\$264,836	\$234,639

Table of Contents

Item 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

The Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 contains certain safe harbor provisions regarding forward-looking statements. This Form 10-Q, and other information provided by us or statements made by our directors, officers or employees from time to time, may contain "forward-looking" statements and information, which involve risks and uncertainties. Actual future results may differ materially. Statements indicating that we "expect," "estimate," "believe," "are planning" or "plan to" are forward-looking, as are other statements concerning future financial results, product offerings or other events that have not yet occurred. There are various factors that could cause actual results or events to differ materially from those anticipated by the forward-looking statements, including but not limited to the following: (1) Market acceptance of Progress's strategy and product development initiatives; (2) pricing pressures and the competitive environment in the software industry and Platform-as-a-Service market; (3) Progress's ability to successfully manage transitions to new business models and markets, including an increased emphasis on a cloud and subscription strategy; (4) uncertainties relating to Progress' acquisition of Telerik, including whether Progress will be able to realize expected benefits and anticipated synergies of the acquisition and whether Telerik's business will be successfully integrated with Progress Software's business; (5) Progress's ability to make acquisitions and to realize the expected benefits and anticipated synergies from such acquisitions; (6) the continuing uncertainty in the U.S. and international economies, which could result in fewer sales of Progress's products and may otherwise harm Progress's business; (7) business and consumer use of the Internet and the continuing adoption of Cloud technologies; (8) Progress's ability to expand its relationships with channel partners; (9) the timely release of enhancements to Progress's products and customer acceptance of new products; (10) the positioning of Progress's products in its existing and new markets; (11) variations in the demand for professional services and technical support; (12) Progress's ability to penetrate international markets and manage its international operations; and (13) changes in exchange rates; and those factors discussed in Part II, Item 1A (Risk Factors) in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, and in Part I, Item 1A (Risk Factors) in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended November 30, 2014. Although we have sought to identify the most significant risks to our business, we cannot predict whether, or to what extent, any of such risks may be realized. We also cannot assure you that we have identified all possible issues which we might face. We undertake no obligation to update any forward-looking statements that we make.

Use of Constant Currency

Revenue from our international operations has historically represented more than half of our total revenue. As a result, our revenue results have been impacted, and we expect will continue to be impacted, by fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates. For example, if the local currencies of our foreign subsidiaries weaken, our consolidated results stated in U.S. dollars are negatively impacted.

As exchange rates are an important factor in understanding period to period comparisons, we believe the presentation of revenue growth rates on a constant currency basis enhances the understanding of our revenue results and evaluation of our performance in comparison to prior periods. The constant currency information presented is calculated by translating current period results using prior period weighted average foreign currency exchange rates. These results should be considered in addition to, not as a substitute for, results reported in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP).

Overview

We are a global software company that simplifies the development, deployment and management of business applications on-premise or in the cloud, on any platform or device, to any data source, with enhanced performance, minimal IT complexity and low total cost of ownership. We intend to become a leading provider of next-generation

application development and deployment capabilities in the cloud for the PaaS market. In furtherance of this strategy, we began to unify the product capabilities of our core product lines with the goal of refining and enhancing our next generation, feature-rich application development and deployment solution targeting the new market category of PaaS.

We made acquisitions in fiscal year 2014 in furtherance of our PaaS strategy and designed to accelerate our growth. In May 2014, we acquired Modulus LLC (Modulus), a PaaS provider offering a platform for easily hosting, deploying, scaling and monitoring data-intensive, real-time applications using powerful, rapidly growing Node.js and MongoDB technologies. In October, we acquired BravePoint, Inc. (BravePoint), a leading provider of consulting, training and application development services designed to increase customers' profitability and competitiveness through the use of technology. The acquisition of BravePoint significantly extends our services capabilities and enhances our ability to quickly enable our partners and customers to take greater advantage of new technologies.

Table of Contents

Following the end of fiscal year 2014, we acquired Telerik AD, a leading provider of application development tools. Telerik enables its 1.7 million strong developer community to create compelling user experiences across cloud, web, mobile and desktop applications. Through this acquisition, we now provide comprehensive cloud and on-premise platform offerings that enable developers to rapidly create applications, driven by data for any web, desktop or mobile platform. Our operating performance in fiscal year 2015 may be impacted by the disruption caused by the acquisition of Telerik as we finalize our integration efforts.

In addition, the revenue of Telerik is primarily being recognized ratably over the maintenance period, which is generally one year, as vendor specific objective evidence (or VSOE) of fair value cannot be established for such maintenance. As a result of acquisition accounting, the acquired deferred revenue balance was significantly reduced to reflect its fair value as of the acquisition date. However, we are still incurring the associated costs to fulfill the acquired deferred revenue, which are reflected in our consolidated statement of operations. As a result, our expenses as a percentage of total revenue are higher than we expect they will be in future periods once this acquired deferred revenue balance is recognized.

Effective September 1, 2014, we began operating as three distinct business units: OpenEdge, Data Connectivity and Integration, and Application Development and Deployment, each with dedicated sales, product management and product marketing functions. As a result of these changes, we began segment reporting for our three business units beginning in the fourth fiscal quarter of 2014. The segment information for the prior periods presented has been restated to reflect the change in our reportable segments.

In January 2014, our Board of Directors authorized a \$100.0 million share repurchase program. Under this authorization, we repurchased 1.3 million shares for \$32.9 million during the first nine months of fiscal year 2015. The approximate dollar value of shares that may yet be purchased under the program as of August 31, 2015 is \$14.5 million. In September 2015, our Board of Directors authorized a new \$100.0 million share repurchase program, which increased the total authorization to \$114.5 million. The timing and amount of any shares repurchased will be determined by management based on its evaluation of market conditions and other factors, and the Board of Directors may choose to suspend, expand or discontinue the repurchase program at any time.

We derive a significant portion of our revenue from international operations, which are primarily conducted in foreign currencies. As a result, changes in the value of these foreign currencies relative to the U.S. dollar have significantly impacted our results of operations and may impact our future results of operations. Beginning in the fourth quarter of 2014, the value of the U.S. dollar strengthened in comparison to certain foreign currencies, including in Europe, Brazil and Australia, and has continued to strengthen during 2015. Since approximately 40% of our revenue is denominated in foreign currency, our revenue results have been negatively impacted, and we expect will continue to be impacted, by fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates.

We have evaluated, and expect to continue to evaluate, possible acquisitions and other strategic transactions designed to expand our business and/or add complementary products and technologies to our existing product sets. As a result, our expected uses of cash could change, our cash position could be reduced and we may incur additional debt obligations to the extent we complete additional acquisitions.

We believe that existing cash balances, together with funds generated from operations and amounts available under our credit facility will be sufficient to finance our operations and meet our foreseeable cash requirements through at least the next twelve months.

Table of Contents

Results of Operations

The following table sets forth certain income and expense items as a percentage of total revenue, and the percentage change in dollar amounts of such items compared with the corresponding period in the previous fiscal year (due to rounding, totals may not equal the sum of the line items in the table below):

	Perce	ntage	of To	otal Re	evei	nue				Percent	age	Change		
	Three	Mon	ths E	nded	1	Nine I	Month	ns Ende				Nine		
	Augu	st 31,	Aug	gust 31	l, <i>i</i>	Augus	st 31,	Augus	t 31,	Months		Months	8	
	2015		201	4	2	2015		2014		Ended		Ended		
Revenue:														
Software licenses	34	%	33	(% 3	32	%	33	%	21	%	12	%	
Maintenance and services	66		67		6	68		67		19		13		
Total revenue	100		100)	1	100		100		19		13		
Costs of revenue:														
Cost of software licenses	2		2		2	2		2		(20)	(9)	
Cost of maintenance and services	10		7		1	12		7		84		92		
Amortization of acquired intangibles	4		1		4	5		1		389		576		
Total costs of revenue	16		10		1	19		10		92		110		
Gross profit	84		90		8	81		90		11		2		
Operating expenses:														
Sales and marketing	32		28		3	35		30		33		30		
Product development	22		19		2	25		19		36		44		
General and administrative	15		15		1	16		15		16		19		
Amortization of acquired intangibles	3				4	4				2,647		2,133		
Restructuring expenses	3		2		3	3		1		52		336		
Acquisition-related expenses	1		1		1	1		1		16		1		
Total operating expenses	75		66		8	84		67		36		40		
Income (loss) from operations	9		24		((3)	23		(56)	(110)	
Other (expense) income, net	(1)	(3)	-	_		(1)	53		51		
Income (loss) from operations before	0		21		,	(2	`	22		(5.6	`	(112	`	
income taxes	8		21		((3)	22		(56)	(113)	
Provision (benefit) for income taxes	12		7		((3)	7		97		(145)	
Net (loss) income	(4)	14		-	_		15		(137)	(98)	
Revenue														
							s Ende		Per	centage		_		
(In thousands)				Augi	ıst (31,	Augu	ıst 31,	As	Reported	d (Constant		

	Three Month	s Ended	Percentage Change			
(In thousands)	August 31,	August 31,	As Reported	Constant		
	2015	2014	713 Reported	Currency		
Revenue	\$94,637	\$79,274	19 %	29	%	
	Nine Months	Ended	Percentage C	hange		
(In thousands)	August 31,	August 31,	As Reported	Constant		
(iii tiiousaiius)	2015	2014	As Reported	Currency		
Revenue	\$264,836	\$234,639	13 %	21	%	

Total revenue increased \$15.4 million, or 19%, in the third quarter of fiscal year 2015 as compared to the same quarter last year. Revenue would have increased by 29% if exchange rates had been constant in fiscal year 2015 as compared to exchange rates in fiscal year 2014. In addition, total revenue increased \$30.2 million, or 21% on a constant currency

basis and 13% using actual exchange rates, in the first nine months of fiscal year 2015 as compared to the same period last year. The increase was

Table of Contents

primarily a result of the impact of our acquisition of Telerik in December 2014 and BravePoint during the fourth fiscal quarter of 2014. Changes in prices from fiscal year 2014 to 2015 did not have a significant impact on our revenue.

License Revenue

	Three Months End	nded	Percentage Ch	ange
(In thousands)		ugust 31, 014	As Reported	Constant Currency
License	\$31,840 \$2	26,393	21 %	19 %
As a percentage of total revenue	34 % 33	3 %		
	Nine Months End	ded	Percentage Ch	ange
(In thousands)		ugust 31, 014	As Reported	Constant Currency
License	\$85,794 \$7	76,645	12 %	16 %
As a percentage of total revenue	32 % 33	3 %		

License revenue increased \$5.4 million, or 21%, in the third quarter of fiscal year 2015 as compared to the same quarter last year and increased \$9.1 million, or 12%, in the first nine months of fiscal year 2015 as compared to the same period last year. The increase in license revenue in the third quarter and in the first nine months of fiscal year 2015 as compared to the same periods last year was primarily in the North America and Asia Pacific regions as a result of incremental license revenue from Telerik due to our acquisition at the beginning of the year, as well as strong license sales from OpenEdge, including a large, new license deal to a direct end user in the Asia Pacific region.

Maintenance and Services Revenue

	Three Mor	ths	Ended	Percentage Change				
(In thousands)	August 31, 2015				As Reported		Constant Currency	
Maintenance	\$55,365		\$50,746		9	%	24	%
As a percentage of total revenue	59	%	64	%				
Services	7,432		2,135		248	%	254	%
As a percentage of total revenue	8	%	3	%				
Total maintenance and services revenue	\$62,797		\$52,881		19	%	34	%
As a percentage of total revenue	66	66 %		%				
	Nine Mont	he F	Ended		Percentage	- Cl	1ange	
(In thousands)	Nine Mont August 31, 2015		Ended August 31, 2014		Percentage As Report		nange Constant Currency	
(In thousands) Maintenance	August 31,		August 31,		C	ed	Constant	%
	August 31, 2015		August 31, 2014	%	As Report	ed	Constant Currency	%
Maintenance	August 31, 2015 \$157,259		August 31, 2014 \$151,231		As Report	ed	Constant Currency 14	%
Maintenance As a percentage of total revenue	August 31, 2015 \$157,259 59		August 31, 2014 \$151,231 64		As Report	ed %	Constant Currency 14	,-
Maintenance As a percentage of total revenue Services	August 31, 2015 \$157,259 59 21,783	%	August 31, 2014 \$151,231 64 6,763	%	As Report	ed % %	Constant Currency 14	,-

Maintenance and services revenue increased \$9.9 million in the third quarter of fiscal year 2015 as compared to the same quarter last year. Maintenance revenue increased 9% and professional services revenue increased 248% in the third quarter of fiscal year 2015 as compared to the third quarter of fiscal year 2014. The increase in maintenance

revenue was primarily in the North America region, mainly as a result of the acquisition of Telerik. Professional services revenue increased 248% quarter over quarter as a result of the BravePoint acquisition, which was completed during the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2014.

Table of Contents

Maintenance and services revenue increased \$21.0 million in the first nine months of fiscal year 2015 as compared to the same period last year. Maintenance revenue increased 4% and professional services revenue increased 222% in the first nine months of fiscal year 2015 as compared to the same period of fiscal year 2014. The increase in maintenance revenue was primarily in the North America region, mainly as a result of the acquisition of Telerik. Professional services revenue increased 222% period over period as a result of the BravePoint acquisition, which was completed during the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2014.

Revenue by Region

	Three Mor	Percentage Change						
(In thousands)	August 31 2015	August 31, 2014		As Reported		Constant Currency		
North America	\$49,810	\$49,810			40	%	40	%
As a percentage of total revenue	53	%	45	%				
EMEA	\$30,656		\$32,995		(7)%	6	%
As a percentage of total revenue	32	%	42	%				
Latin America	\$4,621		\$5,695		(19)%	9	%
As a percentage of total revenue	5	%	7	%				
Asia Pacific	\$9,550		\$4,930		94	%	125	%
As a percentage of total revenue	10	%	6	%				
	Nine Mon	ths I	Ended		Percentag	e Ch	ange	
(In thousands)	Nine Mon August 31 2015		Ended August 31, 2014		Percentag As Report		ange Constant Currency	
(In thousands) North America	August 31		August 31,				Constant Currency	%
	August 31 2015	,	August 31, 2014	%	As Report	ed	Constant Currency	%
North America	August 31 2015 \$139,454	,	August 31, 2014 \$107,066		As Report	ed	Constant Currency 30	%
North America As a percentage of total revenue	August 31 2015 \$139,454 53	, %	August 31, 2014 \$107,066 46		As Report	ed %	Constant Currency 30	
North America As a percentage of total revenue EMEA	August 31 2015 \$139,454 53 \$89,667	, %	August 31, 2014 \$107,066 46 \$96,008	%	As Report	ed %	Constant Currency 30	
North America As a percentage of total revenue EMEA As a percentage of total revenue	August 31 2015 \$139,454 53 \$89,667 34	, %	August 31, 2014 \$107,066 46 \$96,008 41 \$16,506	%	As Report 30 (7	eed %	Constant Currency 30	%
North America As a percentage of total revenue EMEA As a percentage of total revenue Latin America	August 31 2015 \$139,454 53 \$89,667 34 \$13,977	, % %	August 31, 2014 \$107,066 46 \$96,008 41 \$16,506	% %	As Report 30 (7	eed %	Constant Currency 30 7 5	%

Total revenue generated in North America increased \$14.2 million, and total revenue generated outside North America increased \$1.2 million, in the third quarter of fiscal year 2015 as compared to the same quarter last year. The increase in North America was primarily due to the impact of the Telerik and BravePoint acquisitions during the first quarter of fiscal year 2015 and the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2014, respectively. The decreases in EMEA and Latin America were primarily due to the impact of the stronger U.S. dollar, while the increase in Asia Pacific was primarily due to an increase in license revenue, mainly as a result of a large, new license deal to a direct end user in the region. Total revenue generated in markets outside North America represented 47% of total revenue in the third quarter of fiscal year 2015 and 55% of total revenue in the same quarter last year. If exchange rates had remained constant in the third quarter of fiscal year 2015 as compared to the exchange rates in effect in the third quarter of fiscal year 2014, total revenue generated in markets outside North America would have been 51% of total revenue.

Total revenue generated in North America increased \$32.4 million, and total revenue generated outside North America decreased \$2.2 million, in the first nine months of fiscal year 2015 as compared to the same period last year. The increase in North America was primarily due to the impact of the Telerik and BravePoint acquisitions during the first quarter of fiscal year 2015 and the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2014, respectively. The decreases in EMEA and Latin America were primarily due to the impact of the stronger U.S. dollar, while the increase in Asia Pacific was

primarily due to an increase in license revenue, mainly as a result of a large, new license deal to a direct end user in the region. Total revenue generated in markets outside North America represented 47% of total revenue in the first nine months of fiscal year 2015 and 54% of total revenue in the same period of fiscal year 2014. If exchange rates had remained constant in the first nine months of fiscal year 2015 as compared to the exchange rates in effect in the same period of fiscal year 2014, total revenue generated in markets outside North America would have been 51% of total revenue.

Table of Contents

Revenue by Segment

	Three Month	s Ended	Percentag	nange		
(In thousands)	August 31, 2015	August 31, 2014	As Report	ed	Constant Currency	
OpenEdge segment	\$73,398	\$71,847	2	%	12	%
Data Connectivity and Integration segment	8,281	7,175	15	%	17	%
Application Development and Deployment segment	12,958	252	*		*	
Total revenue	\$94,637	\$79,274	19	%	29	%
	Nine Months	Ended	Percentag	e Cł	nange	
(In thousands)	Nine Months August 31, 2015	Ended August 31, 2014	Percentag As Report		Constant Currency	
(In thousands) OpenEdge segment	August 31,	August 31,	C		Constant Currency	%
	August 31, 2015	August 31, 2014	C	ed	Constant Currency 10	% %
OpenEdge segment	August 31, 2015 \$214,775	August 31, 2014 \$211,773	As Report	ed %	Constant Currency 10	, -
OpenEdge segment Data Connectivity and Integration segment	August 31, 2015 \$214,775 22,669	August 31, 2014 \$211,773 22,221	As Report	ed %	Constant Currency 10 3	, -

Revenue in the OpenEdge segment increased \$1.6 million, or 2% using actual exchange rates and 12% on a constant currency basis, in the third quarter of fiscal year 2015 as compared to the same quarter last year. The increase is due to growth in the Asia Pacific region, as well as incremental services revenues as a result of the BravePoint acquisition during the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2014, partially offset by a decrease in license and maintenance revenue in the EMEA region. Data Connectivity and Integration revenue increased \$1.1 million, or 15%, in the third quarter of fiscal year 2015 as compared to the same quarter last year. Application Development revenue increased \$12.7 million year over year as a result of the impact of the Telerik acquisition, which closed during the first quarter of fiscal year 2015.

Revenue in the OpenEdge segment increased \$3.0 million, or 1% using actual exchange rates and 10% on a constant currency basis, in the first nine months of fiscal year 2015 as compared to the same period last year. The increase is primarily due to incremental services revenues as a result of the BravePoint acquisition during the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2014, offset by a decrease in maintenance revenue primarily in the EMEA region. Data Connectivity and Integration revenue increased \$0.4 million, or 2.0%, in the first nine months of fiscal year 2015 as compared to the same period last year. Application Development revenue increased \$26.7 million, year over year, as a result of the impact of the Telerik acquisition, which closed during the first quarter of fiscal year 2015.

Cost of Software Licenses

	Three Mo	s Ended			Nine Mor							
(In thousands)	August 3 2015	1,	August 31 2014	Ι,	Percenta: Change	ge	August 3 2015	1,	August 3: 2014	1,	Percenta Change	\mathcal{C}
Cost of software licenses	\$1,441		\$1,805		(20)%	\$4,526		\$4,951		(9)%
As a percentage of software license revenue	5	%	7	%			5	%	6	%		
As a percentage of total revenue	2	%	2	%			2	%	2	%		

Cost of software licenses consists primarily of costs of royalties, electronic software distribution, duplication and packaging. Cost of software licenses decreased \$0.4 million, or 20%, in the third quarter of fiscal year 2015 as compared to the same quarter last year, and decreased as a percentage of software license revenue from 7% to 5%. Cost of software licenses decreased \$0.4 million, or 9%, in the first nine months of fiscal year 2015 as compared to

the same period last year, and decreased as a percentage of software license revenue from 6% to 5%. Cost of software licenses as a percentage of software license revenue varies from period to period depending upon the relative product mix.

Table of Contents

Cost of Maintenance and Services

	Three Mo	s Ended	Nine Mor									
(In thousands)	August 32 2015	1,	August 31 2014	Ι,	Percenta Change	ge	August 31 2015	l,	August 31 2014	Ι,	Percenta Change	_
Cost of maintenance and services	\$9,612		\$5,222		84	%	\$31,174		\$16,276		92	%
As a percentage of maintenance and services revenue	15	%	10	%			17	%	10	%		
As a percentage of total revenue	10	%	7	%			12	%	7	%		

Cost of maintenance and services consists primarily of costs of providing customer support, consulting and education. Cost of maintenance and services increased \$4.4 million, or 84%, in the third quarter of fiscal year 2015 as compared to the same quarter last year, and increased as a percentage of maintenance and services revenue from 10% to 15%. Cost of maintenance and services increased \$14.9 million, or 92%, in the first nine months of fiscal year 2015 as compared to the same period last year, and increased as a percentage of maintenance and services revenue from 10% to 17%. The increase in cost of maintenance and services is primarily due to the impact of the BravePoint acquisition, which closed during the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2014.

Amortization of Acquired Intangibles

	Three Month	s Ended		Nine Months Ended						
(In thousands)	August 31,	August 31,	Percentage	August 31.	August 31,	Percenta	.ge			
(III tilousalius)	2015	2014	Change	2015	2014	Change				
Amortization of acquired intangibles	\$ \$4,079	\$834	389 %	\$12,805	\$1,893	576	%			
As a percentage of total revenue	4 %	1 9	6	5	% 1 %	2				

Amortization of acquired intangibles included in costs of revenue primarily represents the amortization of the value assigned to technology-related intangible assets obtained in business combinations. Amortization of acquired intangibles increased \$3.2 million, or 389%, in the third quarter of fiscal year 2015 as compared to the same quarter last year and increased \$10.9 million, or 576%, in the first nine months of fiscal year 2015 as compared to the same period last year. The increase was due to amortization of intangible assets acquired with the Modulus, BravePoint and Telerik acquisitions, which were completed in the second quarter of fiscal year 2014, the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2014, and the first quarter of fiscal year 2015, respectively, partially offset by decreases due to the completion of amortization of certain intangible assets acquired in prior years.

Gross Profit

	Three Mo	onth	s Ended			Nine Mor						
(In thousands)	August 3	1,	August 31	,		ge	_	١,	August 31	,		;e
,	2015		2014		Change		2015		2014		Change	
Gross profit	\$79,505		\$71,413		11	%	\$216,331		\$211,519		2	%
As a percentage of total revenue	84	%	90	%			81	%	90	%		

Our gross profit increased \$8.1 million, or 11%, in the third quarter of fiscal year 2015 as compared to the same quarter last year and increased \$4.8 million, or 2%, in the first nine months of fiscal year 2015 as compared to the same period last year. Our gross profit as a percentage of total revenue decreased from 90% to 84% and 90% to 81% in the third quarter and first nine months of fiscal year 2015, respectively, compared to the same periods of fiscal year 2014. The increase is primarily due to an increase in revenue as described above, partially offset by the increase of

cost of maintenance and services, mainly due to the impact of the BravePoint acquisition, and the increase of amortization of acquired intangible assets. In addition, as a result of acquisition accounting, the deferred revenue balance acquired from Telerik in the first quarter of fiscal year 2015 was significantly reduced to reflect its fair value as of the acquisition date. However, we are still incurring the associated costs to fulfill the acquired deferred revenue, which are reflected in our consolidated statement of operations. As a result, our expenses as a percentage of total revenue are higher than we expect they will be in future periods once this acquired deferred revenue balance is recognized.

Table of Contents

Sales and Marketing

	Three Mon	nth	s Ended			Nine Months Ended						
(In thousands)	August 31	,	August 31	1,	Percenta	ge	August 3	l,	August 31	,	Percenta	age
(III tilousalius)	2015		2014		Change		2015		2014		Change	
Sales and marketing	\$30,004		\$22,477		33	%	\$92,607		\$71,425		30	%
As a percentage of total revenue	32	%	28	%			35	%	30	%		

Sales and marketing expenses increased \$7.5 million, or 33%, in the third quarter of fiscal year 2015 as compared to the same quarter last year, and increased as a percentage of total revenue from 28% to 32%. Sales and marketing expenses increased \$21.2 million, or 30%, in the first nine months of fiscal year 2015 as compared to the same period last year, and increased as a percentage of total revenue from 30% to 35%. The increase in both periods was primarily due to higher compensation-related costs in the sales function as a result of headcount increases primarily due to the impact of the Telerik and BravePoint acquisitions during the first quarter of fiscal year 2015 and the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2014, respectively. Marketing expenses were higher primarily due to the impact of the Telerik acquisition.

Product Development

	Three Mo	nth	s Ended				Nine Months Ended					
(In thousands)	August 31 2015	Ι,	August 31 2014	Ι,	Percenta Change	ge	August 31 2015	1,	August 32 2014	1,	Percenta Change	ge
Product development costs	\$20,701		\$16,045		29	%	\$66,858		\$48,576		38	%
Capitalized product development costs	(279)	(1,070)	(74)%	(1,325)	(3,008)	(56)%
Total product development expense	\$20,422		\$14,975		36	%	\$65,533		\$45,568		44	%
As a percentage of total revenue	22	%	19	%			25	%	19	%		

Product development expenses increased \$5.5 million, or 36%, in the third quarter of fiscal year 2015 as compared to the same quarter last year, and increased as a percentage of revenue from 19% to 22%. Product development expenses increased \$20.0 million, or 44%, in the first nine months of fiscal year 2015 as compared to the same period last year, and increased as a percentage of revenue from 19% to 25%. The increase in both periods was primarily due to higher compensation-related costs in the product development function as a result of headcount increases due to the impact of the Telerik acquisition during the first quarter of fiscal year 2015. Capitalized product development costs decreased by 74% and 56% during the three and nine months ended August 31, 2015 as compared to the same periods last year as a result of our decision to replace our internally developed cloud-based mobile application development technology with technology acquired in connection with the acquisition of Telerik.

General and Administrative

	Three Montl	ns Ended		Nine Months		
(In thousands)	August 31,	August 31,	Percentage	August 31,	August 31,	Percentage
(III thousands)	2015	2014	Change	2015	2014	Change
General and administrative	\$14,076	\$12,162	16 %	\$42,065	\$35,236	19 %
As a percentage of total revenue	15 %	15 %	, O	16 %	15 %)

General and administrative expenses include the costs of our finance, human resources, legal, information systems and administrative departments. General and administrative expenses increased \$1.9 million, or 16%, in the third quarter of fiscal year 2015 as compared to the same quarter in the prior year, and remained flat as a percentage of revenue.

General and administrative expenses increased \$6.8 million, or 19%, in the first nine months of fiscal year 2015 as compared to the same period in the prior year, and increased as a percentage of revenue from 15% to 16%. The increase was primarily due to higher compensation-related costs in the general and administrative function as a result of headcount increases due to the impact of the Telerik acquisition during the first quarter of fiscal year 2015 and the BravePoint acquisition during the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2014.

Table of Contents

Amortization of Acquired Intangibles

	Three Month	ns Ended		Nine Months Ended					
(In thousands)	August 31,	August 31,	Percentage	August 31,	August 31,	Percentag	ge		
(In thousands)	2015	2014	Change	2015	2014	Change			
Amortization of acquired intangible	s \$3,186	\$116	2,647 %	\$9,559	\$428	2,133	%		
As a percentage of total revenue	3 %	%		4 %	%				

Amortization of acquired intangibles included in operating expenses primarily represents the amortization of value assigned to intangible assets obtained in business combinations other than assets identified as purchased technology. Amortization of acquired intangibles increased \$3.1 million in the third quarter of fiscal year 2015 as compared to the same quarter last year and increased \$9.1 million in the first nine months of fiscal year 2015 as compared to the same period in the prior year. The increase was due to amortization of intangible assets acquired with the Modulus, BravePoint and Telerik acquisitions, which were completed in the second quarter of fiscal year 2014, the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2014, and the first quarter of fiscal year 2015, respectively, partially offset by decreases due to the completion of amortization of certain intangible assets acquired in prior years.

Restructuring Expenses

	Three Mon	s Ended		Nine Months Ended								
(In thousands)	August 31,		August 31	,	Percenta	ge	August 31	l,	August 31	,	Percenta	age
(In thousands)	2015		2014		Change		2015		2014		Change	
Restructuring expenses	\$2,561		\$1,680		52	%	\$8,715		\$2,001		336	%
As a percentage of total revenue	3	%	2	%			3	%	1	%		

Restructuring expenses recorded in the third quarter and first nine months of fiscal year 2015 relate to the restructuring activities occurring in fiscal years 2015, 2014, 2013 and 2012. See Note 11 to the condensed consolidated financial statements for additional details, including types of expenses incurred and the timing of future expenses and cash payments. See also the Liquidity and Capital Resources section of this Item 2, Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

Acquisition-Related Expenses

	Three Mont	hs Ended		Nine Months Ended						
(In thousands)	August 31,	August 31,	Percentage	August 31,	August 31,	Percentage				
(In thousands)	2015	2014	Change	2015	2014	Change				
Acquisition-related expenses	\$662	\$572	16 %	\$3,180	\$3,148	1 %				
As a percentage of total revenue	1 %	1 %)	1 %	1 %)				

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred and include those costs incurred as a result of a business combination. These costs consist of professional service fees, including third-party legal and valuation-related fees, as well as retention fees, including earn-out payments treated as compensation expense. Acquisition-related expenses remained relatively flat in the third quarter and first nine months of fiscal year 2015 compared to the same periods last year. See Note 6 to the condensed consolidated financial statements for additional details.

Income (Loss) From Operations

	Three Months Ended		Nine Months Ended
(In thousands)		Percentage	

Income (loss) from operations	August 3 2015 \$8,594	1,	August 3 2014 \$19,431	1,	Change (56)%	August : 2015 \$(5,328)	,	August 3 2014 \$53,713	1,	Percenta Change (110	.ge)%
As a percentage of total revenue	9	%	24	%			(3)%	23	%		
33												

Table of Contents

Income from operations decreased \$10.8 million, or 56%, in the third quarter of fiscal year 2015 as compared to the same quarter last year. Income from operations decreased \$59.0 million, or 110%, in the first nine months of fiscal year 2015 as compared to the same period last year. As discussed above, the decrease in both periods was primarily the result of higher expenses resulting from acquisitions, partially offset by higher revenue during the third quarter and first nine months of fiscal year 2015 compared to the same periods last year.

Income (Loss) from Operations by Segment

	Three Mont	hs Ended		Nine Months Ended					
(In thousands)	August 31, 2015	August 31, 2014	Percentage Change	August 31, 2015	August 31, 2014	Percentage Change			
OpenEdge segment	\$54,848	\$56,323	(3)%	\$158,246	\$163,003	(3)%			
Data Connectivity and Integration segment	5,101	4,660	9 %	13,106	14,308	(8)%			
Application Development and Deployment segment	3,025	(2,194	238 %	(2,777)	(5,117)	46 %			
Other unallocated expenses	(54,380)	(39,358	(38)	(173,903)	(118,481)	(47)%			
Income (loss) from operations	\$8,594	\$19,431	(56)%	\$(5,328)	\$53,713	(110)%			

Note that the following expenses are not allocated to our segments as we manage and report our business in these functional areas on a consolidated basis only: product development, corporate marketing, general and administration, amortization of acquired intangibles, stock-based compensation, restructuring, and acquisition-related expenses.

Other (Expense) Income

	Three Mo	s Ended		Nine Months Ended								
(In thousands)	August 3	1,	August 3	1,	Percenta	age	August 3	1,	August 3	1,	Percenta	age
(III tilousalius)	2015		2014		Change		2015		2014		Change	
Interest expense	\$(987)	\$(122)	(709)%	\$(2,808)	\$(430)	(553)%
Interest income and other, net	450		(1,800)	125	%	1,153		(383)	401	%
Foreign currency gain (loss), net	(628)	(535)	(17)%	397		(1,768)	122	%
Total other (expense) income, net	\$(1,165)	\$(2,457)	53	%	\$(1,258)	\$(2,581)	51	%
As a percentage of total revenue	(1)%	(3)%			_	%	(1)%		

Total other expense decreased \$1.3 million in both the third quarter and first nine months of fiscal year 2015 as compared to the same periods last year. The decrease in both periods is primarily due to the realized loss of \$2.6 million resulting from the sale of our auction rate securities, which is included in interest income and other, net for the three and nine months ended August 31, 2014 and did not reoccur during the same periods in the current year, partially offset by the increase in interest expense due to the new credit facility, as well as the decrease in foreign currency losses during the nine months ended August 31, 2015. The change in foreign currency gains/losses is a result of movements in exchange rates and the impact in the third quarter and first nine months of fiscal year 2015 on our intercompany receivables and payables denominated in currencies other than local currencies.

Provision (Benefit) for Income Taxes

	Three Mont	hs Ended		Nine Month	s Ended	
(In thousands)	August 31,	August 31,	Percentage	August 31,	August 31,	Percentage
(In thousands)	2015	2014	Change	2015	2014	Change
Provision (Benefit) for income taxes	\$11,555	\$5,879	97 %	\$(7,256)	\$16,138	(145)%

As a percentage of total revenue 12 % 7 % (3)% 7 %

Our effective tax rate was 156% in the third quarter of fiscal year 2015 compared to 35% in the third quarter of fiscal year 2014, and 110% in the first nine months of fiscal year 2015 compared to 32% in the same period last year. The increase in the effective rate is primarily due to the jurisdictional mix of profits as a result of the acquisition of Telerik, where substantial losses are being incurred in Bulgaria and tax effected at a 10% statutory rate and other jurisdictions' earnings, primarily in the

Table of Contents

United States, are being taxed at higher rates. The loss in Bulgaria is primarily due to amortization expense and other purchase accounting adjustments related to the Telerik acquisition. Absent these purchase accounting adjustments we expect Telerik to be profitable for fiscal year 2015. Deferred tax liabilities have been established in purchase accounting for the tax effect of the Telerik amortization expense and other purchase accounting adjustments.

Net (Loss) Income

	Three Mo	onths	Ended				Nine Mon	ths	s Ended			
(In thousands)	August 3 2015	1,	August 31 2014	,	Percenta Change	ge	August 31 2015	,	August 31, 2014	,	Percenta Change	0
Net (loss) income	\$(4,126)	\$11,095		(137)%	\$670		\$34,994		(98)%
As a percentage of total revenue	(4)%	14	%				%	15	%		

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Short-Term Investments

(In thousands)	August 31,	November 30,
(In thousands)	2015	2014
Cash and cash equivalents	\$189,113	\$263,082
Short-term investments	29,191	20,186
Total cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments	\$218,304	\$283,268

The decrease in cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments of \$65.0 million from the end of fiscal year 2014 was primarily due to the purchase of Telerik for cash consideration of \$246.3 million, which is net of cash acquired, and repurchases of our common stock of \$32.9 million, offset by cash inflows from operations of \$77.2 million and net proceeds of \$142.6 million from the issuance of debt. Except as described below, there are no limitations on our ability to access our cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments.

As of August 31, 2015, \$77.2 million of our cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments was held by our foreign subsidiaries. This amount is considered to be permanently reinvested; as such, it is not available to fund our domestic operations. If we were to repatriate these funds, they would be subject to taxation in the U.S., but would be offset by foreign tax credits. We do not believe this has a material impact on our liquidity.

Share Repurchase Program

In January 2014, our Board of Directors authorized a \$100.0 million share repurchase program. During the first nine months of fiscal year 2015, we repurchased 1.3 million shares of our common stock for \$32.9 million, with \$14.5 million remaining under the current authorization.

In September 2015, our Board of Directors authorized a new \$100.0 million share repurchase program, which increased the total authorization to \$114.5 million. The timing and amount of any shares repurchased will be determined by management based on its evaluation of market conditions and other factors, and the Board of Directors may choose to suspend, expand or discontinue the repurchase program at any time.

Restructuring Activities

During the third quarter of fiscal year 2014, our management approved, committed to and initiated plans to make strategic changes to its organization to provide greater focus and agility in the delivery of next generation application

development, deployment and integration solutions. Effective September 1, 2014, we began to operate as three distinct business units: OpenEdge, Data Connectivity and Integration, and Application Development and Deployment, each with dedicated sales, product management and product marketing functions. In connection with the new organizational structure, we no longer have a global head of sales, as well as certain other positions within the sales and administrative organizations.

As part of the 2014 restructuring, for the nine months ended August 31, 2015, we incurred expenses of \$1.3 million, which are related to employee costs, including severance, health benefits, and outplacement services, but excluding stock-based

Table of Contents

compensation, and facilities costs, which include fees to terminate lease agreements and costs for unused space, net of sublease assumptions. The expenses are recorded as restructuring expenses in the condensed consolidated statements of operations. We do not expect to incur additional material costs with respect to the 2014 restructuring. Cash disbursements for expenses incurred to date under the 2014 restructuring are expected to be made through the first quarter of fiscal year 2016.

During the first quarter of fiscal year 2015, we restructured our operations in connection with the acquisition of Telerik. This restructuring resulted in a reduction in redundant positions primarily within the administrative functions. This restructuring also resulted in the closing of two facilities as well as asset impairment charges for assets no longer deployed as a result of the acquisition. During the second and third quarters of fiscal year 2015, we incurred additional costs with respect to the 2015 restructuring, including reduction in redundant positions primarily within the product development function, as well as an impairment charge discussed below.

During the second quarter of fiscal year 2015, we decided to replace our existing cloud-based mobile application development technology with technology acquired in connection with the acquisition of Telerik. Accordingly, we evaluated the ongoing value of the assets associated with this prior mobile technology and, based on this evaluation, we determined that the long-lived assets with a carrying amount of \$4.0 million were no longer recoverable, and were in fact impaired, and we wrote them down to their estimated fair value of \$0.1 million.

As part of the 2015 restructuring, for the nine months ended August 31, 2015, we incurred expenses of \$7.4 million, which includes the impairment charge discussed above. The expenses are recorded as restructuring expenses in the condensed consolidated statements of operations. As we continue to evaluate the combined entities, we may incur additional costs with respect to the 2015 restructuring, which could be significant, including excess facilities and other costs as well as asset impairment charges for assets no longer deployed as a result of the acquisition.

Term Loan and Line of Credit

On December 2, 2014, we entered into a new credit agreement with JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. and the other lenders party to the credit agreement providing for a \$150 million secured term loan and a \$150 million secured revolving credit facility. The revolving credit facility may be increased by up to an additional \$75 million if the existing or additional lenders are willing to make increased commitments. The term loan was used to partially fund our acquisition of Telerik. The revolving credit facility has sublimits for swing line loans up to \$25.0 million and for the issuance of standby letters of credit in a face amount up to \$25.0 million. We expect to use the revolving credit facility for general corporate purposes, including acquisitions of other businesses, and may also use it for working capital.

Interest rates for the term loan and revolving credit facility are determined at our option and would range from 1.50% to 2.25% above the Eurodollar rate for Eurodollar-based borrowings or would range from 0.50% to 1.25% above the defined base rate for base rate borrowings, in each case based upon our leverage ratio. Additionally, we may borrow certain foreign currencies at rates set in the same range above the respective London interbank offered interest rates for those currencies, based on our leverage ratio. A quarterly commitment fee on the undrawn portion of the revolving credit facility is required, ranging from 0.25% to 0.40% per annum, based upon our leverage ratio. The average interest rate of the credit facility during the fiscal quarter ended August 31, 2015 was 1.96%.

The credit facility matures on December 2, 2019, when all amounts outstanding will be due and payable in full. The revolving credit facility does not require amortization of principal. The term loan requires repayment of principal at the end of each fiscal quarter, beginning with the fiscal quarter ending February 28, 2015. The first eight payments are in the principal amount of \$1.9 million each, the following eight payments are in the principal amount of \$3.8 million each, the following three payments are in the principal amount of \$5.6 million each, and the last payment is of the remaining principal amount. Any amounts outstanding under the term loan thereafter would be due on the

maturity date. The term loan may be prepaid before maturity in whole or in part at our option without penalty or premium. As of August 31, 2015, the outstanding balance of the term loan was \$144.4 million, with \$7.5 million due in the next 12 months.

Revolving loans may be borrowed, repaid and reborrowed until December 2, 2019, at which time all amounts outstanding must be repaid. Accrued interest on the loans is payable quarterly in arrears with respect to base rate loans and at the end of each interest rate period (or at each three month interval in the case of loans with interest periods greater than three months) with respect to LIBOR rate loans. We may prepay the loans or terminate or reduce the commitments in whole or in part at any time, without premium or penalty, subject to certain conditions and reimbursement of certain costs in the case of LIBOR rate loans. As of August 31, 2015, there were no amounts outstanding under the revolving line and \$0.5 million of letters of credit.

We are the sole borrower under the credit facility. Our obligations are guaranteed by each of our material domestic subsidiaries

Table of Contents

and are secured by substantially all of our assets and those of our material domestic subsidiaries, as well as 100% of the capital stock of our domestic subsidiaries and 65% of the capital stock of our first-tier foreign subsidiaries, in each case, subject to certain exceptions. Future material domestic subsidiaries will be required to guaranty our obligations under the credit facility, and to grant security interests in substantially all of their assets to secure such obligations.

The credit facility contains customary affirmative and negative covenants, including covenants that limit or restrict our ability to, among other things, grant liens, make investments, make acquisitions, incur indebtedness, merge or consolidate, dispose of assets, pay dividends or make distributions, repurchase stock, change the nature of the business, enter into certain transactions with affiliates and enter into burdensome agreements, in each case subject to customary exceptions for a credit facility of this size and type. We are also required to maintain compliance with a consolidated fixed charge coverage ratio, a consolidated total leverage ratio and a consolidated senior secured leverage ratio. We are in compliance with these covenants as of August 31, 2015.

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

	Nine Months Ended			
(In thousands)	August 31,	August 31,		
(III tilousalius)	2015	2014		
Net income	\$670	\$34,994		
Non-cash reconciling items included in net income	30,622	31,411		
Changes in operating assets and liabilities	45,896	2,064		
Net cash flows from operating activities	\$77,188	\$68,469		

The increase in cash generated from operations in the first nine months of fiscal year 2015 as compared to the first nine months of fiscal year 2014 was primarily due to changes in operating assets and liabilities. Our gross accounts receivable as of August 31, 2015 decreased by \$8.5 million from the end of fiscal year 2014, which is primarily due to greater collections than billings during the period. Days sales outstanding (DSO) in accounts receivable was 54 days compared to 63 days at the end of fiscal year 2014. In addition, our total deferred revenue as of August 31, 2015 increased by \$34.8 million from the end of fiscal year 2014 due to the acquisition of Telerik at the beginning of the year.

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

	Nine Months I	∃nded
(In thousands)	August 31,	August 31,
(iii tilousalius)	2015	2014
Net investment activity	\$(9,632)	\$39,231
Purchases of property and equipment	(6,079)	(7,183)
Capitalized software development costs	(1,661)	(3,008)
Payments for acquisitions, net of cash acquired	(246,275)	(12,493)
Proceeds from divestitures, net	4,500	3,300
Other investing activities		144
Net cash flows used in investing activities	\$(259,147)	\$19,991

Net cash outflows and inflows of our net investment activity are generally a result of the timing of our purchases and maturities of securities, which are classified as cash equivalents or short-term securities. In addition, we purchased \$6.1 million of property and equipment in the first nine months of fiscal year 2015, as compared to \$7.2 million in the first nine months of fiscal year 2014. Most significantly, however, we acquired Telerik during the first quarter of fiscal year 2015 for a net cash amount of \$246.3 million, compared to the acquisition of Modulus during the second quarter

of fiscal year 2014 for a net cash amount of \$12.5 million.

Table of Contents

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

	s Ended		
(In thousands)	August 31, 2015	August 31, 2014	
Proceeds from stock-based compensation plans	\$10,459	\$10,714	
Repurchases of common stock	(32,868) (52,604)
Net proceeds from the issuance of debt	142,588		
Other financing activities	(1,952) (2,917)
Net cash flows used in financing activities	\$118,227	\$(44,807)

During the first nine months of fiscal year 2015, we received net proceeds of \$142.6 million from the issuance of debt. We also received \$10.5 million in the first nine months of fiscal year 2015 from the exercise of stock options and the issuance of shares under our employee stock purchase plan as compared to \$10.7 million in the first nine months of fiscal year 2014. In addition, in the first nine months of fiscal year 2015, we repurchased \$32.9 million of our common stock under our share repurchase plan compared to \$52.6 million in the same period of the prior year.

Indemnification Obligations

We include standard intellectual property indemnification provisions in our licensing agreements in the ordinary course of business. Pursuant to our product license agreements, we will indemnify, hold harmless, and agree to reimburse the indemnified party for losses suffered or incurred by the indemnified party, generally business partners or customers, in connection with certain patent, copyright or other intellectual property infringement claims by third parties with respect to our products. Other agreements with our customers provide indemnification for claims relating to property damage or personal injury resulting from the performance of services by us or our subcontractors. Historically, our costs to defend lawsuits or settle claims relating to such indemnity agreements have been insignificant. Accordingly, the estimated fair value of these indemnification provisions is immaterial.

Liquidity Outlook

We believe that existing cash balances, together with funds generated from operations and amounts available under our new credit facility, will be sufficient to finance our operations and meet our foreseeable cash requirements through at least the next twelve months. We do not contemplate a need for any foreign repatriation of the earnings which are deemed permanently reinvested. Our foreseeable cash needs include our planned capital expenditures and share repurchases, lease commitments, restructuring obligations and other long-term obligations.

Revenue Backlog

(In thousands)	August 31, 2015	August 31, 2014
Deferred revenue, primarily related to unexpired maintenance and support contracts (1)	\$130,996	\$95,279
Multi-year licensing arrangements (2)	22,791	8,474
Total revenue backlog	\$153,787	\$103,753

- (1) The increase in deferred revenue compared to the prior year is directly a result of the acquisition of Telerik in the first quarter of fiscal year 2015.
- (2) Our backlog of orders not included on the balance sheet is not subject to our normal accounting controls for information that is either reported in or derived from our basic financial statements. Note that approximately \$19.8

million of the multi-year licensing arrangements as of August 31, 2015 relate to DataDirect OEM arrangements, while the remaining amount relates to arrangements in our OpenEdge business unit.

We typically fulfill most of our software license orders within 30 days of acceptance of a purchase order. Assuming all other revenue recognition criteria have been met, we recognize software license revenue upon shipment of the product, or if delivered electronically, when the customer has the right to access the software. Because there are many elements governing when revenue is recognized, including when orders are shipped, credit approval obtained, completion of internal control processes over revenue recognition and other factors, management has some control in determining the period in which certain revenue is recognized. In addition, there is no industry standard for the definition of backlog and there may be an element of

Table of Contents

estimation in determining the amount. As such, direct comparisons with other companies may be difficult or potentially misleading.

Legal and Other Regulatory Matters

See discussion regarding legal and other regulatory matters in Part II, Item 1. Legal Proceedings.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

Our only significant off-balance sheet commitments relate to operating lease obligations. Future annual minimum rental lease payments are detailed in Note 10 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended November 30, 2014. We have no "off-balance sheet arrangements" within the meaning of Item 303(a)(4) of Regulation S-K.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting Standards Update No. 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606) (ASU 2014-09). ASU 2014-09 outlines a single comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from contracts with customers and supersedes most current revenue recognition guidance, including industry-specific guidance. This new guidance is effective for annual reporting periods (including interim reporting periods within those periods) beginning after December 15, 2016. Early adoption is not permitted. Entities have the option of using either a full retrospective or a modified approach to adopt the guidance. In July 2015, the FASB voted to defer the effective date of this ASU by one year for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2017, with early adoption permitted as of the original effective date. As a result, the new effective date for the Company will be December 1, 2018. This update could impact the timing and amounts of revenue recognized. Management is currently assessing the impact the adoption of this ASU will have on the Company's consolidated financial statements.

In April 2015, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update No. 2015-03, Interest - Imputation of Interest (Subtopic 835-30) Simplifying the Presentation of Debt Issuance Costs (ASU 2015-03). ASU 2015-03 requires debt issuance costs to be presented in the balance sheet as a direct deduction from the carrying value of the associated debt liability, consistent with the presentation of a debt discount. The guidance in ASU 2015-03 is required for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2015, including interim periods within the reporting period. Early adoption is permitted for financial statements that have not been previously issued. The Company is considering early adoption of the new standard and expects the impact on the Company's consolidated balance sheets to be a reclassification of approximately \$1.4 million from other assets to long-term debt as of December 1, 2015.

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

During the third quarter of fiscal year 2015, there were no significant changes to our quantitative and qualitative disclosures about market risk. Please refer to Part II, Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for our fiscal year ended November 30, 2014 for a more complete discussion of the market risks we encounter.

Item 4. Controls and Procedures

(a) Evaluation of disclosure controls and procedures

Our management maintains disclosure controls and procedures as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act") that are designed to provide reasonable assurance that information required to be disclosed in our reports filed or submitted under the Exchange Act is processed, recorded, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC's rules and forms, and that such information is accumulated and communicated to management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer (our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, respectively), as appropriate, to allow for timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Our management, including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, carried out an evaluation of the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report. Based on this evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective to ensure that the information required to be disclosed in the reports filed or submitted by us under the Securities

Table of Contents

Exchange Act of 1934 was recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the requisite time periods and that such information was accumulated and communicated to our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate to allow for timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

(b) Changes in internal control over financial reporting

Our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, evaluated our "internal control over financial reporting" as defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f) to determine whether any changes in our internal control over financial reporting occurred during the fiscal quarter ended August 31, 2015 that materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting. Based on that evaluation, there were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting during the fiscal quarter ended August 31, 2015 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect our internal control over financial reporting.

Table of Contents

PART II. OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1. Legal Proceedings

We are subject to various legal proceedings and claims, either asserted or unasserted, which arise in the ordinary course of business. While the outcome of these claims cannot be predicted with certainty, management does not believe that the outcome of any of these legal matters will have a material effect on our financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

We operate in a rapidly changing environment that involves certain risks and uncertainties, some of which are beyond our control. In addition to the information provided in this report, please refer to Part I, Item 1A. Risk Factors in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended November 30, 2014 for a more complete discussion regarding certain factors that could materially affect our business, financial condition or future results.

Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds

Items 2(a) and 2(b) are not applicable.

(c) Stock Repurchases

Information related to the repurchases of our common stock by month in the third quarter of fiscal year 2015 is as follows (in thousands, except per share and share data):

			Total Number of	Approximate Dollar
			Shares Purchased	Value of Shares that
Period	Total Number of	Average Price	as Part of	May Yet be
renod	Shares Purchased	Paid per Share	Publicly	Purchased Under
			Announced Plans	the Plans or
			or Programs	Programs (1)(2)
June 2015	_	\$	_	\$14,527
July 2015	_	_	_	14,527
August 2015				14,527
Total	_	\$	_	\$14,527

⁽¹⁾ In January 2014, our Board of Directors authorized a \$100.0 million share repurchase program. Under this authorization, we repurchased 1.3 million shares for \$32.9 million during the first nine months of fiscal year 2015. In September 2015, our Board of Directors authorized a new \$100.0 million share repurchase program, which

⁽²⁾ increased the total authorization to \$114.5 million. The timing and amount of any shares repurchased will be determined by management based on its evaluation of market conditions and other factors, and the Board of Directors may choose to suspend, expand or discontinue the repurchase program at any time.

Table of Contents

Item 6. Exhibits

The following exhibits are filed or furnished as part of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q:

Exhibit No.	Description
31.1*	Certification of the Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act – Philip M. Pead
31.2*	Certification of the Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act – Chris E. Perkins
32.1**	Certification Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
101***	The following materials from Progress Software Corporation's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the three and nine months ended August 31, 2015, formatted in XBRL (eXtensible Business Reporting Language): (i) Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets as of August 31, 2015 and November 30, 2014; (ii) Condensed Consolidated Statements of Income for the three and nine months ended August 31, 2015 and August 31, 2014; (iii) Condensed Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income for the three and nine months ended August 31, 2015 and August 31, 2014; (iv) Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the nine months ended August 31, 2015 and August 31, 2014; and (v) Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.

- * Filed herewith
- ** Furnished herewith

Pursuant to Rule 406T of Regulation S-T, the Interactive Data Files on Exhibit 101 hereto are deemed not filed or part of a registration statement or prospectus for purposes of Sections 11 or 12 of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, are deemed not filed for purposes of Section 18 of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and otherwise are not subject to liability under those sections.

Table of Contents

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

PROGRESS SOFTWARE CORPORATION

(Registrant)

Dated: October 7, 2015 /s/ PHILIP M. PEAD

Philip M. Pead

President and Chief Executive Officer

(Principal Executive Officer)

Dated: October 7, 2015 /s/ CHRIS E. PERKINS

Chris E. Perkins

Senior Vice President, Finance and Administration and

Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial Officer)

Dated: October 7, 2015 /s/ PAUL A. JALBERT

Paul A. Jalbert

Vice President, Corporate Controller and Chief

Accounting Officer

(Principal Accounting Officer)